AGENDA
KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION
9:00 a.m., Friday, August 12, 2022
EISENHOWER STATE OFFICE BUILDING
700 SW Harrison, Suite 450 & 460
Topeka, KS 66603

A. CALL TO ORDER
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Minutes of July 22. 2022

D. CONSENT AGENDA
Items listed on the consent agenda are routine in nature. If requested by a commissioner,
an item June be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed under Commission Items
for further discussion and consideration.

1. Approvals and revocations for certain lottery facility games and related components

a. GLI Approval Letters August 2022

b. GLI Revocation Letters August 2022

c. BMM Approval Letters August 2022

2. Internal Control Amendment Approvals

a. Boot Hill Casino and Resort Internal Control Amendment Approvals

b. Kansas Star Casino Internal Control Amendment Approvals

E. LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS
1. Boot Hill Casino and Resort

a. July Monthly Report

b. July Revenue Report

2. Kansas Star Casino

a. July Monthly Report




b. July Revenue Report

3. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway

a. July Monthly Report

b. July Revenue Report

4. Kansas Crossing Casino

a. July Monthly Report

b. July Revenue Report

. COMMISSION ITEMS - OLD BUSINESS

1. Sports Wagering — Regulation Review and Approval

Commission Action Commission review, discussion, and approval

Presenters Todd Allen, Director of Sports Wagering
. COMMISSION ITEMS — NEW BUSINESS

None

. PUBLIC COMMENTS

LUNCH

STAFF REPORTS

1. Garrett Rogers, Paralegal
a. Voluntary Exclusion Program Report

2. Todd Allen, Director of Sports Wagering
3. Don Brownlee, Executive Director
. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS

The Commission conducts executive sessions in accordance with the Kansas Open
Meetings Act and all discussions are limited to the specified purposes listed in K.S.A. 75-
4319. The Commission utilizes executive sessions to consult with the Commission’s
attorney on confidential legal matters, to discuss confidential personnel matters, to
protect the confidentiality of necessarily closed information including licensee



background reports, and to protect the integrity of gaming information and the
confidentiality of lottery gaming facility manager finances.

The following items will be discussed during the first executive session:

1. Background Reports
The following items will be discussed during the second executive session:
1. Attorney/Client Privilege
L. OTHER BUSINESS/FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION
1. Consideration of proposed gaming licenses and renewals

M. ADJOURNMENT



CALL TO ORDER
(A)

MOTION, APPROVE
AGENDA

(B.)

COMMISSION ITEMS —
OLD BUSINESS

()

MOTION, APPROVE
June 10, 2022
MEETING MINUTES

(D)

MOTION, APPROVE
CONSENT AGENDA

(E)

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION

MINUTES — JULY 22, 2022

Chairman David Moses called the July 22, 2022, meeting to order at 10:00
a.m. The meeting was held at the Downtown Ramada in Topeka, Kansas.
Notice of this meeting was given to the public via the KRGC and Public
Square websites. Commissioners Brandon Jones, Larry Turnquist, Kelly
Kultala, and Sheryl Spalding were also present. Others present included
Executive Director Don Brownlee, General Counsel Judith Taylor,
Director of Administration, Audit, and Finance Brandi White, Director of
Security Roger Bailey, Director of Sports Wagering Todd Allen, and other
staff.

Commissioner Jones (Kultala) moved to amend the agenda so that Old
Business would immediately follow and to approve the agenda as
otherwise printed. Motion carried 5-0.

Charles Bartlett M.S.W., Director of Adult Services at the Kansas
Department of Aging and Disability Services, gave a presentation
regarding appropriations of the Problem Gambling and Other Addictions
Grant Fund in FY 21.

e In FY 21 the Problem Gambling and Other Addictions Fund
received $7.5 million. $600,000 was appropriated to Problem
Gambling Services, other expenditures include Medicaid Mental
Health, KDADS/AAPS Grants, Administration, Transfer to
Community Correction, and a transfer to the Governor’s Office.

e The Northeast Regional Taskforce for the Kansas Coalition on
Problem Gambling was disbanded due to funding management.
Staff are currently working to reinstate a taskforce in the region.

e Commissioner Kultala questioned the funds allocation totals
across expenditure categories on the FY21 PGAOF Distribution
slide ($7.5 million reported total vs. $9.85 million calculated total),
and Mr. Bartlett agreed to consult with his fiscal group about the
discrepancy and report back.

Commissioner Spalding (Turnquist) moved to approve the minutes of the
June 10, 2022 meeting. Motion carried 5-0.

Commissioner Kultala (Jones) moved to approve the consent agenda (six
items). Motion carried 5-0.



LOTTERY GAMING Diane Giardine, General Manager, reported:

FACILITY

REPORTS/ITEMS; BOOT .

HILL CASINO & RESORT

(F.1.a.) ©
(@]

e June 2022 revenue numbers compared to June 2021:

Total gaming revenue down 3.46 %
Total slot revenue down 7.51%
Table games revenue up 55.59%

e Events and Promotions:

o

0O O O O O

o

Weekly Kiosk Games

Weekly Food and Beverage Specials

Gift Promotions

Gameboard Prizes

Great Summer Grill Giveaways Saturdays in June
Dodge City Days Ranger UTV Giveaways

VIP Promotions

e Upcoming Entertainment & Events

o

O 0O 0O 0O 0O O O O

O

SW Storm (Arena Football) — June 4

$100,000 Summer Fun Jackpot

Jackpot Party — July 4

Jon Pardi (Dodge City Days Concert) — July 30
Rodeo — August 2" through 7th

Boothill Casino Longhorn Cattle Run - August 6
Amanda Miguel & Ana Victoria — October 14
Los Angeles Azules — October 23

Jake Owen — November 5

Gloria Trevi — November 6

e Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report

(@)

O O O O

o

o O O O

As of June 30, 249 active employees

Between January 1°* and June 30", there was 71 new hires
66 new employees completed TIPS training

26 existing employees recertified TIPS testing

All active employees are scheduled to complete annual
refresher training for TIPS/Responsible Alcohol Service by
the 4th Quarter of 2022.

BHCMC, LLC has 4 certified TIPS Trainers on property.
71 new hires have taken Responsible Gaming during the
reporting period.

All active employees are scheduled to complete annual
refresher training for Responsible Gaming by the 4th
Quarter of 2022.

2 VEPs refused entry

5 VEPs removed from casino floor

14 intoxicated patrons were refused entry

58 intoxicated patrons were removed from the casino



o 191 minors were refused entry

o 271 patrons were refused entry due to not having an ID

o 147 patrons were refused entry due to having an invalid ID
e Since June 10", there have been 15 positive cases of COVID

LOTTERY GAMING Jeff Babinski, Vice President and General Manager, reported:
FACILITY e Admissions down 12.5% compared to June 2021
IS{;EII;(;RTS/ITEMS; KANSAS e June 2022 revenue numbers compared to June 2021:
(F2.a) o Total gross gaming revenue down 10.5%
Slot coin-in down 10.1%
Slot hold down 0.45 pts

Table games drop down 1.6%
Table games hold up 3.4 pts

o O O O

e Past Events and Promotions:

o Free Play Bonus offers every Friday and Saturday
Queen-size blow-up mattress giveaway - June 11
VIP hosted event - June 26
Southern Plains Wrestling — June 3-5, 2022
Ricky Skaggs — June 18, 2022
Tuan Hung Nguyen — July 9, 2022

o Bigand Rich — July 15, 2022
e Upcoming Events and Promotions:

o Ted Nugent — August 5, 2022
Brantley Gilbert — September 2, 2022
Oak Ridge Boys — September 23, 2022
Third Eye Blind — October 22, 2022
National Final Steer Roping — November 4-5, 2022

o Farm Expo — December 1-3, 2022
e Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report

o 116 new employees completed Responsible Gaming and

o O O O

o O O O

Alcohol Awareness trainings with an emphasis on the
Voluntary Exclusion Program.

o All front of house food and beverage staff, security staff,
valet staff, slot floorperson staff and above, table games
dealers and above, surveillance staff, and directors
completed the ServSafe training.

o Asof June 30, 2022, Kansas Star Casino had 635 active
team members

o All staff undergo an annual refresher Responsible Gaming
training.

o 119 underage individuals were denied access to the gaming
floor



LOTTERY GAMING
FACILITY
REPORTS/ITEMS;
HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT
KANSAS SPEEDWAY
(F.3.a.)

o 530 people were denied access for not having an ID

336 people were denied access for having an invalid ID

103 intoxicated individuals were denied access to the

gaming floor

2 VEPs were denied access to the gaming floor

173 intoxicated individuals were ejected from the casino

9 VEPs were removed and turned over to KRGC agents

3 underage persons were ejected from the casino

135 persons were removed from the casino for various

reasons

602,389 guests entered the casino floor

Security checked 79,412 IDs.

o Kansas Star Casino was a sponsor of the 19th Annual

Virtual Midwest Conference on Problem Gambling and
Substance Abuse which took place June 15-16, 2022.
Kansas Star Casino provided a Premiere Scholarship at
$5000.00.

e Since June 10", there have been 30 positive cases of COVID and 15

staff have quarantined for precautionary measures.

o O O O O o

o O

Rick Skinner, Vice President & General Manager, reported:
e Admissions were down 8.4% compared to June 2021
e June 2022 revenue numbers compared to June 2021:
o Total gross gaming revenue increase 1.8%
o Slot revenue down 0.4%
o Table games revenue up 25.4%
e Recent/Upcoming Events and Promotions:
June 18 — Father’s Day Giveaway
June 18 — 10 Year $200K Drawing
June 24 — Drop and Win
June 25 - $50K Jackpot Party
July 1 — Mychoice mysummer Kickoff
July 1 — Crazy about Spades
July 8 — Closet Clean Out
July 9 — Summer Sippin Table Games Giveaway
July 9 — Email Pick Pull & Win
July 11 — Christmas in July
July 28 — Money Booth
July 30 — Winners Party
August 1 — Crazy K9s Table Games Giveaway
August 4 — Take It or Leave It
August 13 — Free Gas for a Year

0O 0 0O 00 OO0 OO0 O o o o o o



o September 11 — Hollywood 400 presented by Bar Stool Sports
Bar
e Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report
o As of June 30, 2022, Hollywood Casino had a total of 331
employees, 90 employees were hired during the reporting period.
o All new hires completed Responsible Gaming training.
o 35 new hires completed TIPS training, 33 existing employees
refreshed their TIPS training
o Denied access to 40 minors, 1 minor was ejected from the casino
o Denied access to or removed from the property 181 intoxicated
individuals
o Referred 23 VEPs to KRGC for processing
e Since June 1%, there have been 12 positive cases. Three staff members
are currently quarantined.

LOTTERY GAMING Jeff McKain, General Manager, reported:

FACILITY e Admissions up 8.3% compared to June 2021
REPORTSAITEMS; KANSAS e June 2022 revenue numbers compared to June 2021:
CROSSING CASINO u VOLTHRR P u :

o Coin in up 4.4%

o Table games drop up 9.2%

o Net gaming revenue up 7.0%
e Events and Promotions:

o June

Kiosk Multipliers games every Tuesday.
Camp 49 Hot promotional specials every Wednesday.
Casino Hot Seats every Thursday.
Table Game Hot Seats every Friday.
Cash is King promotion Friday the 24th.
Casino Gift Day every Saturday.
Puddle of Mudd concert Saturday the 4th.
MMA sports event on Saturday the 18",
Bonus gift day on Sunday the 26,

0O 0O 0O 0O 0O o0 O O O

o July

Retail promotions of Monday July 4th.

Kiosk Multiplier games every Tuesday.

Camp 49 Hot promotional specials every Wednesday.
Casino Hot Seats every Thursday.

Table Game Smash and Grab promotion every Friday.
Summertime Spins promotion every Friday.

Scott McCreery outdoor concert Friday the 29th.
Casino gift day every Saturday.

Card Shark promotion every Saturday.

0O O 0O 0O 0O 0o O O O



o Cash is King promotion Saturday the 30th.
o Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report

o As of July 1, 2022, Kansas Crossing Casino had 200
active team members

o 26 new hires received their TIPS training, 12 existing
team members recertified, 5 staff members are pending
certification

o All staff have received the Responsible Gambling
training in 2022

o Kansas Crossing participated in Responsible Gambling
Education Week in March 2022. KCC had activities to
improve team member knowledge and stress the
importance of Responsible Gambling for the casino and
the community. KCC team members wore Responsible
Gambling Awareness buttons and had a Responsible
Gaming related quiz for team members.

o 43 minores were refused entry to the casino

o 26 intoxicated patrons were refused entry to the casino,
14 intoxicated patrons were removed from the casino

o 5 VEPs were removed or excluded from the casino

o 40 patrons were denied access due to invalid ID

o 353 patrons were denied access due to not having an ID

o Since June 1%, there have been 14 positive cases of COVID, one
staff member is currently in quarantine.

COMMISSION ITEMS — Executive Director, Don Brownlee and Director of Sports Wagering, Todd

NEW BUSINESS
(G)

Allen, gave a report on the status of temporary sports wagering
regulations.

Staff was unable to prepare temporary regulations to submit for
commission review. Initial sports wagering regulation drafts were
created a few years ago when the legislature began discussing the
topic. These regulations were shared with facility managers and
contracted gaming labs for comment. The feedback received and
the nuances in the legislation, require regulation drafts be updated.
It is anticipated that updated regulations will be ready for review
and possible approval at the August 12, 2022, commission
meeting.

Executive Director Brownlee suggested that Director of Sports
Wagering Allen give an overview of the regulations at the next
meeting. It was determined that commissioners would be provided
with the existing regulations and that they could individually



PUBLIC COMMENTS
(H)

STAFF REPORTS
(I.1.and 1.2.)

contact Director Allen with any questions. All questions asked of
Director Allen will be shared at the August 12" commission
meeting.

There were no public comments.

Garrett Rogers, Paralegal, reported on the Voluntary Exclusion Program
statistics for the month of July 2022.

Todd Allen, Director of Sports Wagering, reported:

There was no additional information from what was shared in
New Business.

Executive Director Brownlee reported:

KRGC is working to fill positions related to sports wagering.
KRGC has identified the primary platform companies from each
of the lottery casinos and have requested the completion of the
Business Entity Disclosure Form.

KRGC has also identified the third-party vendors that work with
those platforms and have requested they also complete the
Business Entity Disclosure Form.

Once the information is received and reviewed, a decision
regarding the provisional license can be made.

Governor Kelly’s office is negotiating with the Prairie Band Tribe
to modify their compact with the state to allow them to provide
sports wagering.

KRGC is updating regulations regarding parimutuel facilities to
provide historical horse racing as approved in SB 84. There is not
an anticipated submission date for the draft regulations at this
time.

Fiscal Year 2022 ended June 30™ Lottery revenue was up 7%.
There is one racino planning to open a temporary facility in
Nebraska in the Fall, another racino plans to open a temporary
facility by year’s end. A third facility is anticipated to open next
spring.

The next commission meeting is scheduled August 12, 2022, at
the Eisenhower State Office Building at 10:00am.



MOTION, EXECUTIVE
SESSION; CONFIDENTIAL
BACKGROUND REPORTS

(J.1.)

RECONVENE
(1.2)

MOTION, EXECUTIVE
SESSION; ATTORNEY-
CLIENT PRIVILEGE
(1.3.)

o Chairman Moses suggested beginning the meeting at
9:00a.m. and scheduling a lunch break, anticipating that
the meeting may run longer than normal.

o Chairman Moses asked if the new backgrounds would
need extra time. Executive Director Brownlee answered
No and explained that the process will be very similar to
the existing background process.

Commissioner Turnquist (Spalding) moved that the Commission go into
executive session for the purpose of reviewing confidential background
reports presented today by the commission’s security division. In addition
to the commissioners, the confidential background reports portion
included the executive director, general counsel, and director of security.
The total time for the executive session was anticipated to be twenty (20)
minutes until 12:05 p.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, and
the subjects discussed are to be limited as previously described. A full
record of this motion is to be maintained as part of the permanent record
of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. At the conclusion of the
executive session, the meeting is to be continued in open session. The
motion carried 5-0, and the meeting was adjourned to executive session at
11:45 a.m.

The commission meeting returned to open session at 12:05 p.m. with
Chairman Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist,
Commissioner Kultala, and Commissioner Spalding present.

Commissioner Jones (Kultala) moved that the Commission go into
executive session for the purpose of consulting with the agency’s attorney
on attorney-client privileged communications. In addition to the
commissioners, the attorney-client privileged communications will
include the executive director and general counsel. After discussion, the
total time for the executive session was anticipated to be twenty-five (25)
minutes until 12:30 p.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, and
the subjects discussed are to be limited as previously described. A full
record of this motion is to be maintained as part of the permanent record
of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. At the conclusion of the
executive session, the meeting is to be continued in open session. The
motion carried 5-0, and the meeting was adjourned to executive session at
12:05 p.m.



RECONVENE
(J.4)

MOTIONS ON LICENSE
APPLICATIONS
(K.1.)

OTHER BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT
(L)

SUBMITTED BY:

Larry Turnquist
Secretary

APPROVED BY:

David Moses
Chairman

The commission meeting returned to open session at 12:32 p.m. with
Chairman Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist,
Commissioner Kultala, and Commissioner Spalding present. Chairman
Moses noted that the executive session did end at 12:30 p.m., but logistical
hurdles delayed the return to open session.

Commissioner Turnquist (Spalding) moved to deny one license
application, conditionally approve one license applications, and approve
the remaining 205 license applications from the July 22, 2022, list of
background reports referred to the commission for action. The motion
carried 5-0.

There were no other items for discussion or motion.
Chairman Moses stated that the August 12, 2022 commission meeting will
begin at 9:00 a.m. for an in-person meeting at the Eisenhower State Office

Building.

Commissioner Kultala (Jones) moved to adjourn the meeting. Motion
passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 12:35 p.m.



August 12, 2022

Recommended for Approval

Manufacturer
Acres Manufacturing Company *
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

File Number
SY-73-AC3-22-06
MO-73-ARI-22-56

Game Name
Nex7 SAS Telemetry System
Buffalo Diamond Extreme

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-57

Buffalo Diamond Extreme Vertex Schedule

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-65

ATl Media Platform

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-68

Chica Bonita

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-69

2x Fireball 7s Cash Express Luxury Line

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-70

Cash Express Luxury Line Vertex Schedule

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-72

Kung Fu Master

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-73

3x Agua 7s Cash Express Luxury Line

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-75

494501-2

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-76

494501-1

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc.

MO-73-ARI-22-79

Cashman Kingdom

Everi Payments,

Inc.

MO-73-GAC-22-02

JCM iVIZION Bill Validator Firmware

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-17 Roulette

IGT MO-22-IGT-22-18 GAME KING X PACK_BUNDLE (GKX)

IGT MO-22-1GT-22-19 Super Hot Roll Poker

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-68 Empresses vs Emperors

IGT MO-73-IGT-22-84 Wheel of Fortune Ca$h Link Exotic Far East
IGT MO-73-1GT-22-85 Wheel of Fortune Cas$h Link Latin Getaways

INCREDIBLE TECHNOLOG

MO-22-INT-22-05

EOS PHOBOS Main Program

GLI Test Labs

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-497-KON-19-01 |Transact Epic Edge Printer

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-497-KON-19-02 |Transact Epic Edge Printer Firmware

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-21-06 Majestic Moon Triple Sparkle

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-21-51  |Treasure Ball Duo Luck Elephant Break

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-21-52 Treasure Ball Duo Luck Extended

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-03 Mystical Pearl Mermaid

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-04 Mystical Pearl Neptune

SG Gaming, Inc. f/lk/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-253-BAL-22-02 |Ultimate Fire Link Explosion
SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-21-95 Jin Ji Bao Xi - Prancing Pigs
SG Gaming, Inc. f/lk/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-22-62 Treasure Shot Pirate Ship
SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-22-75 Treasure Shot Robin Hood
SG Gaming, Inc. f/lk/a Bally Gaming, Inc. MO-73-BAL-22-81 RCU Firmware

*  Executive Appproval - 07/21/2022




August 12, 2022 Recommended for Revocation GLI Test Labs

Revoked File Revoked ID New ID Replace
Revoked Manufacturer Revoked Game Name Number Number New File Number Number By
Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. Cashman Kingdom MO-73-ARI-22-48 |1.02-68093 MO-73-ARI-22-79 |1.03-68093 10/11/2022
SG Gaming, Inc. f/k/a Bally Gaming, Inc. Jin Ji Bao Xi - Prancing Pigs |MO-73-BAL-21-28 |A313-000-1010 |MO-73-BAL-21-95 |A313-000-1020 | 09/11/2022




August 12, 2022 Recommended for Approval BMM Test Labs

Manufacturer Report Number Game Name
Aristocrat Technologies Inc.  |ATI16741KS Loyalty Kiosk Manager
Aristocrat Technologies Inc.  |ATI16762KS Oasis Loyalty Kiosk Manager
IGT IGTU23451KS Triple Double Diamond Jackpots
Interblock INTB11761KS Big Six Super Spin Topper
Interblock INTB11771KS G5 Player Interface Display (PID)
Konami KGI12851KS Treasure Ball Duo Luck Gorilla Riches (KXP Platform)
Konami KGI13221KS Prize Catch Mermaid Paradise




:'f’.'«'***iﬂ o
% & Phone: (785) 296-5800
Eisenhower State Office Building a I I S as Fax: (785) 296-0900
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krge@krge.ks.gov
Topeka, KS 66603 Racing and Gaming Commission krge.ks.gov

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor

Boot Hill Casino Internal Control Amendments
August 12, 2022

Regulation Staff
Item #/ (Description) Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference Recommendation
BH605- Unsecured TITO’s No KAR 112-104-1(c) IC 120.20 Approval

BH609-Slot Wallets No IC 170.09 Approval




Eisenhower State Office Building
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500
Topeka, KS 66603

Racing and Gaming Commission

Phone: (785) 296-5800
Fax: (785)296-0900
krgc@krge.ks.gov
krge.ks.gov

Don Brownlee, Executive Director

Kansas Star Casino Internal Control Amendments

August 12, 2022

Laura Kelly, Governor

Item #/ (Description) Regulation Regulation/IC Reference Staff
Waiver? Recommendation
. KAR 112-104-1 & 2 / Admin Sections 2,
KS8339 7(]:?) 1rrrfclti(;rnfc{eegulatory No 3, & 14; Responsible Gambling Plan; Approval
P Security Plan; and Slots Section 5




BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT
REPORT PRESENTED TO
THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION
AUGUST 12, 2022

By: Diane Giardine

1) For the month of July 2022, BHCR experienced an increase in Total Gaming Revenue of 5.77% over
July 2021. Total Slot Revenue was up 4.13% and Table Games Revenue was up 21.26%.

Upcoming Promotions & Events

o Weekly Kiosk Games

e Weekly Food and Beverage Specials
¢ Gift Promotions

e Dodge City Days Ranger Giveaway
e Money Multiplier Promotion

e VIP Promotions

e Labor Day Specials and Promotions

Upcoming Entertainment & Events
e Jon Pardi (Dodge City Days Concert) — July 30
e Jo Dee Messina — September 16
e Amanda Miguel & Ana Victoria — October 14
e Los Angeles Azules — October 23
e Jake Owen — November 5
e Gloria Trevi — November 6



ERAs
T
41«***:4‘%
;*t,, X 4

Phone: (785) 296-5800
Eisenhower State Office Building an S a S Fax: (785) 296-0900
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krge@krge.ks.gov
Topeka, KS 66603 Racing and Gaming Commission krge.ks.gov

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited*

July July Fiscal YTD Fiscal YTD

2022 2021 2023 2022
Electronic gaming machines 4,001,804.11 3,832,085.16 4,001,804.11 3,832,085.16
Table games 495,515.66 419,908.02 495,515.66 419,908.02
Other # 61.55 60.69 61.55 60.69
Total Lottery Gaming Facility
Revenue 4,497,381.32 4,252,053.87 4,497,381.32 4,252,053.87
State Share 22% 989,423.89 935,451.85 989,423.89 935,451.85
Local Share 3% 134,921.44 127,561.62 134,921.44 127,561.62
Problem Gambling Share 2% 89,947.63 85,041.08 89,947.63 85,041.08
Casino Share 73% 3,283,088.36 3,103,999.33 3,283,088.36 3,103,999.33

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.



KANSAS STAR CASINO
REPORT PRESENTED TO
THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION

August 12, 2022

BY:

Jeff Babinski — Vice President & General Manager

Operational Notes

e July admissions down 12.8% from July 2021

July 2021 Gaming Revenue —

e Total Gross Gaming Revenue down 0.6% to July 2021
e Slot Coin-In (Handle) down 7.5% to July 2021

e Slot hold (gross) flat to July 2021

e Table Game drop up 13.4% from July 2021

e Table Game hold is up 5.4 pts from July 2021

Past Arena Events

e Ted Nugent — August 5, 2022

Upcoming Events

e Brantley Gilbert — September 2, 2022

e QOak Ridge Boys — September 23, 2022

e Third Eye Blind — October 22, 2022

e National Finals Steer Roping — November 4-5, 2022
e Farm Expo Trade Show — December 1-3, 2022



Eisenhower State Office Building
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500
Topeka, KS 66603

ER,,S

T
"****‘4%
; XIS In

rt ";“ *xt" 4

ansas

Racing and Gaming Commission

Phone: (785) 296-5800
Fax: (785) 296-0900
krge@krge.ks.gov
krge.ks.gov

Don Brownlee, Executive Director

Laura Kelly, Governor

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited*

Electronic gaming machines

Table games

Other #

Total Lottery Gaming Facility
Revenue

State Share 22% (Tier 1)**

State Share 2% marginal (Tier 2)**

Local Share 3%

Problem Gambling Share 2%

Casino Share 73%

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

July
2022

11,844,748.03

2,640,595.65

64.05

July
2021

12,785,355.87

1,748,545.00

109.30

Fiscal YTD
2023

11,844,748.03

2,640,595.65

64.05

Fiscal YTD
2022

12,785,355.87

1,748,545.00

109.30

14,485,407.73

14,534,010.17

14,485,407.73

14,534,010.17

3,186,789.70

434,562.23

289,708.15

10,574,347.64

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

3,197,482.24

436,020.31

290,680.20

10,609,827.42

3,186,789.70

434,562.23

289,708.15

10,574,347.64

3,197,482.24

436,020.31

290,680.20

10,609,827.42



HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY
REPORT PRESENTED TO
THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION
Augut 12, 2022

BY: RICK SKINNER — VICE PRESIDENT & GENERAL MANAGER

July 2022

Admissions

e July 2022 admissions were down 4.7% compared to July of 2021
July 2022 Revenue Numbers

e Total Gaming Revenue came in at $13.2M — an increase of 2.9%

e Slot Revenue was just under S12M - an increase of 1.4%

e Table Games Revenue (including Poker) was $1.3M — an increase of 20.5%
Recent/Upcoming Events

e July 30 — Winners Party

August 1 — Crazy K9s Table Games Giveaway

e August 4 —Take It or Leave It

e August 6 —10 Year $200K Drawing

e August 13 — Free Gas for a Year

e August 27 — mychoice madness

e September 9 — Hollywood Casino 400 Drawing

e September 11 — Hollywood Casino 400 NASCAR race



Eisenhower State Office Building
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500
Topeka, KS 66603

ERAs
T
41«***:4‘%
;*t,, X 4

ansas

Racing and Gaming Commission

Phone: (785) 296-5800
Fax: (785) 296-0900
krge@krge.ks.gov
krge.ks.gov

Don Brownlee, Executive Director

HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited*

July
2022

July
2021

Electronic gaming machines

Table games

Other #

Total Lottery Gaming Facility
Revenue

State Share 22%

Local Share 3%

Problem Gambling Share 2%

Casino Share 73%

11,973,013.72 11,811,204.03

1,272,231.46 1,056,430.50

414.41 128.17

Fiscal YTD
2023

11,973,013.72

1,272,231.46

414.41

Laura Kelly, Governor

Fiscal YTD
2022

11,811,204.03

1,056,430.50

128.17

13,245,659.59 12,867,762.70

13,245,659.59

12,867,762.70

2,914,045.11 2,830,907.79
397,369.79 386,032.88
264,913.19 257,355.25
9,669,331.50 9,393,466.77

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

2,914,045.11

397,369.79

264,913.19

9,669,331.50

2,830,907.79

386,032.88

257,355.25

9,393,466.77



KANSAS CROSSING CASINO + HOTEL
REPORT PRESENTED TO
THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION
August 12, 2022
By: Jeff McKain

Kansas Crossing Casino is reporting the following preliminary results for July 2022
vs July 2021;

9.4% Increase in Admissions
8.6% Increase in Coin-In
7.9% Increase in Table Drop
11.1% Increase in Net Gaming Revenue

Promotions + Events

o July

Retail promotions of Monday July 4t

Kiosk Multiplier games every Tuesday.

Camp 49 Hot promotional specials every Wednesday.
Casino Hot Seats every Thursday.

Table Game Smash and Grab promotion every Friday.
Summertime Spins promotion every Friday.

Scott McCreery outdoor concert Friday the 29t.
Casino gift day every Saturday.

Card Shark promotion every Saturday.

o Cash is King promotion Saturday the 30,

0O O 0O O O O 0 O O

e August

o Kiosk Multiplier games every Tuesday.
Camp 49 Hot promotional specials every Wednesday.
Casino Hot Seats every Thursday.
Outside concert on Thursday the 18t featuring Kansas.
Fast Cash promotion Friday 5%, 12t, and 19,
Cash is King promotion Friday the 26,

0O O O O O



o Casino gift day every Saturday.
o Additional gift day on Sunday the 28,



Eisenhower State Office Building
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500
Topeka, KS 66603

ER,,S

e,
pUr o, ‘4‘%

;
;
;,‘a;

l*t:! 4

ansas

Racing and Gaming Commission

Phone: (785) 296-5800
Fax: (785)296-0900

krge@krge.ks.gov
krge.ks.gov

Don Brownlee, Executive Director

Electronic gaming machines

Table games

Other #

Total Lottery Gaming Facility
Revenue

State Share 22%

Local Share 3%

Problem Gambling Share 2%

Casino Share 73%

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

KANSAS CROSSING CASINO & RESORT

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited*

Laura Kelly, Governor

July July Fiscal YTD Fiscal YTD
2022 2021 2023 2022

3,581,640.86 3,167,668.15 3,581,640.86 3,167,668.15
161,118.50 202,416.50 161,118.50 202,416.50
45.00 99.00 45.00 99.00
3,742,804.36 3,370,183.65 3,742,804.36 3,370,183.65
823,416.96 741,440.40 823,416.96 741,440.40
112,284.13 101,105.51 112,284.13 101,105.51
74,856.09 67,403.67 74,856.09 67,403.67
2,732,247.18 2,460,234.06 2,732,247.18 2,460,234.06

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.



Phone: (785) 296-5800
Fax: (785) 296-0900
krge@krge.ks.gov
krge.ks.gov

Eisenhower State Office Building
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500

Topeka, KS 66603 Racing and Gaming Commission

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor

July 2022 Casino Financials

Casino Gaming Revenue for Month Ending July 31, 2022

Revenue Source Boot Hill Casino | Kansas Star Casino | Hollywood Casino | Kansas Crossing Casino | Total All Casinos
EGM $ 4,001,804 | $ 11,844,748 | $ 11,973,014 | $ 3,581,641 | $ 31,401,207
Table Games 495,516 2,640,596 1,272,231 161,119 4,569,461
Other # 62 64 414 45 585
Total S 4,497,381 | S 14,485,408 | S 13,245,660 | S 3,742,804 | S 35,971,253

Cumulative Gaming Revenue per Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
2010 $ 20,663,987 | $ -1s -1s -1 20,663,987
2011 40,055,280 - - - 40,055,280
2012 43,886,501 98,855,928 54,622,687 - 197,365,116
2013 43,353,504 192,187,166 124,993,721 - 360,534,391
2014 39,906,275 181,079,650 132,036,392 - 353,022,317
2015 40,513,186 181,754,051 142,759,065 - 365,026,302
2016 38,937,088 181,600,677 143,833,330 - 364,371,095
2017 40,222,932 178,105,968 144,582,037 8,206,260 371,117,197
2018 41,186,638 182,084,527 148,770,984 32,465,853 404,508,001
2019 41,589,906 184,157,835 150,790,865 34,489,213 411,027,819
2020 32,971,510 150,355,262 122,114,403 28,620,752 334,061,926
2021 43,690,403 172,711,043 124,388,370 33,857,278 374,647,093
2022 49,581,344 162,352,371 149,127,943 39,911,158 400,972,817
2023 4,497,381 14,485,408 13,245,660 3,742,804 35,971,253
Total Since Opening| $ 521,055,935 | $  1,879,729,886 | S  1,451,265,456 | $ 181,293,318 | S 4,033,344,595

Fund Distribution FY 2023

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
State of Kansas 989,424 3,186,790 2,914,045 823,417 7,913,676
Local Governments 134,921 434,562 397,370 112,284 1,079,138

Problem Gambling
and Addictions Fund 89,948 289,708 264,913 74,856 719,425
Casino Manager 3,283,088 10,574,348 9,669,332 2,732,247 26,259,015
Total 4,497,381 14,485,408 13,245,660 3,742,804 35,971,253
Fund Distribution Since Opening

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
State of Kansas 114,632,306 413,669,253 319,278,400 39,884,530 887,464,489
Local Governments 15,631,678 56,391,897 43,537,964 5,438,800 121,000,338

Problem Gambling

and Addictions Fund 10,421,119 37,594,598 29,025,309 3,625,866 80,666,892
Casino Manager 380,370,833 1,372,074,139 1,059,423,783 132,344,122 2,944,212,877
Total 521,055,935 1,879,729,886 1,451,265,456 181,293,318 4,033,344,595

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.




Voluntary Exclusion Program
January 2010 -July 2022

Voluntary Exclusions = 2754
Violation Incidents = 399 (355 individuals)

Racing and Gaming Commission

VEP Gender Exclusion Period

o Male M 2-Year
H Female M Lifetime
Ethnicity
African Am.
Native Am. cit;‘;r 9.4% Lottery Region
. 0
0.44%
’ 50.0% - 45.5%
Lat/His .
0.0% 40.0% -
Asian/P.1. 30.0% - 24.6%
16.0%
% - 14.8%
20.0% 0 11.0%
0, -
10.0% 02%  0.8% I 3.2% L
0.0% ; ; ; ; — -
NW NC NE SwW sc SE Other
Age of VEP
0,
27.8% 26.0%
21.7%
15.1%
5.9%
3.5%
00% — —
Under 18 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 Older

VEP Enrollments by Year

Jan Feb May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct

m2017 m2018 w2019 m2020 m2021 m2022

Nov

Dec

08.03.2022



KRGC Voluntarily Excluded Persons
December 2009 - July 2022

Other-24

2 1
1 P o
2 5 5 162
60
1 ) 1 50 311
15
1 1 5
2 5 3 1 a
2
1 2 1
1
2 72 s 10 19 5 .
1107 e
1 1 Hp 1 3 . 4 3 ‘a7
5 1 2 1 25 19 2 4 11
:Z\_Wnia_s.“g,zmo TOTAL VEPs = 2754

08/03/2022



Ane 07

5 TW T F 5

T 2.3 4.5 &

7 8 9 10 14813

HI31617 181X

7 A MBI
M 30 30 31
Sen D2

ENM TR TFE &

T T 3

4 5 7 2410

11 15 16 17

I'-: ﬁl:" [

12 13 14 .
1B102 0 14
% 25T m
Ot 2022
e T WT F 5
1
¥ §osEAT
o 1011 12 134815
15171818 00 12
B 24B %R I
3 31
Mow X7
M T W-T F %
I 2.3 % 5
§ 7 8 9 W12
13 14 15 15 17498 19
03 BVDH MBI
77 28R
D 20
e M T W

1
18

%
at

Ln

[ LTy ]

b =

o oen
=
Htjl__,:r.ﬂl—ll—]tj

Lo L5

Htj:lxll—'l,ﬂ

LIy o ] -
& lad oy BB e

o =
@

|_.|_.
=

i
3 ]
hwlnthl—‘

August 2022 - July 2023

Kansas Racme and Gamine Commission Plammer

AUGUST
12 Commizion Meeitmg
SEFTEMBER
9 Commizion Meeting
OCTCOBER

14 Commizion Meeting

NOVEMBER
18 Commizion Meeting

DECEMBER
16 Commizion Mesting

JANUARY

13 Commizion Meeting

FEBRUARY
17 Commision Meeting

MARCH
17 Commizion Meeting
APRIL
14 Commizion Meeitmg
MAY

12 Commizion Mesting

JUNE
16 Commizion Meeting

JULY

14 Commizion Meeting

[F7)

i
Ly
]
=]

12
12
15

s

b G oen

=
bt 4 [

e s
—
[ =]

[
L

[ (]
[T E R L]

[jl_j:l:-UH:-:!

Mar 03
S M TWTEFS
5 e |
5 6 7 8 9 101l
12 153 14 15 1688 12
122031 123 MI
2% 77 28 20 30 3
Aor DN
S M TWTTFS
1
3 ¥ ¥R 67 8
o 10 11 12 1348 15
1§17 1818201 12
B MBEWITNE I
0

MM=v¥a3
M TW T F &
1 2 3 4 5 6
7R 9 10 1149813
415 15 17 18 18 20
71 1 R M5 DT
]| % 303
J"iﬂ.:\?:'_:
e M T RGTE 8
1 2 3
4 5 67 %9 i
11 12 13 14 1549F 17
BROXANDEMN
B 35 27 28 10 30

-

Tul
S M T TF &

1
2 3 4 5 67 8
o 1011 12 134 15
16 1718 1920 1 17
PMHBBTER

3l




112-201-1. Definitions. Each of the following words and terms, when used in this article of the
commission’s regulations, shall have the meaning specified in this subsection unless the context
indicates otherwise:

(a) ” Age and identity verification” means a method, system, or device used by a
lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider to verify the
validity of a patron’s age and the patron’s identity.

(b) “Canceled wager” means a wager that has been canceled by the lottery gaming
facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider through the interactive
sports wagering platform due to an issue with an event that prevents the wager completion.

(©) “Cash equivalents” means instruments with a value equal to United States
currency or coin, including certified checks, cashier’s checks, traveler’s checks, money orders,
gaming tickets, winning sports wagering tickets, sports wagering vouchers, and coupons.

(d) “Communications Technology” means a process in which components are
employed to facilitate the transmission of information including, but not limited to, transmission
and reception systems based on wire, cable, radio, microwave, light, optics or computer data
networks and the internet.

(e) “Dormant account” means a sports wagering account that has had no login for a
period of three (3) years.

® “Executive Director” means the executive director of the Kansas Racing and
Gaming Commission and/or anyone within the agency he designates to carry out the duties on

behalf of the agency.



112-201-1

Page 2
(2) “Internet” means the international computer network of both federal and non-
federal interoperable packet switched data networks.
(h) “Interactive sports wagering platform provider” means a sports wagering supplier

that contracts with a lottery gaming facility manager to provide an interactive sports wagering
platform. If a lottery gaming facility manager develops its own interactive sports wagering
platform, the lottery gaming facility manager is also considered an interactive sports wagering
platform provider for the purposes of this article.

(1) “Market” means a wager type (e.g. money line, spread, over/under) on which
opportunities are built for wagering on one or more events.

() “Marketing Plan” means a plan that must be submitted to the executive director
for creation of sports wagering accounts.

(k) “Layoff wager” means a wager placed by an interactive sports wagering platform
provider with another interactive sports wagering platform provider for the purpose of offsetting
patron wagers.

) “Mobile application” means any application on a mobile device through which an
individual is able to place a sports wager through an interactive sports wagering platform.

(m)  “Payout” means the total payment due on a winning wager whether or not:

(1) The patron collects the total payment due at one time.

(2) All or a portion of the payment due is made in the form of cash, chips or other
form of payment; or

3) All or portion of the payment due is used by the patron to place another wager.



112-201-1

Page 3
(n) “Penetration Testing” means attempt to exploit vulnerabilities in the form of
simulated attacks.
(o) “Personally Identifiable Information (PII)” means any information or data used to

confirm an individual’s identity. Personally identifiable information includes, but is not limited
to, name, address, IP address, phone number, social security number, driver’s license number.
Any combination of those pieces of information either alone or in combination with the other
pieces of data, would be considered PII.

(p) “Prohibited sports wagering participant” means any involuntarily-excluded
person, any voluntarily-excluded person, and all of the following:

(1) Any person who is under the age of twenty-one (21);

(2) Any person placing wagers while not within the State of Kansas;

3) A lottery gaming facility manager, and any director, officer, owner and employee
of such manager, and any relative living in the same household as such persons, placing wagers
with the manager at the manager’s location or through the manager’s interactive sports wagering
platform;

(4) An interactive sports wagering platform, any director, officer, owner and
employee of such platform, and any relative living in the same household as such persons,
placing wagers through such platform or at the manager’s location;

(%) Any director, officer, owner and employee of the interactive sports wagering
platform, and any relative living in the same household as such persons, placing wagers with the

manager;



112-201-1
Page 4

(6) Athletes, coaches, referees, team owners, employees of a sports governing body
or its member teams, and player and referee union personnel placing wagers on any sporting
event overseen by such sports governing body;

(7) Any person with access to nonpublic confidential information held by the lottery
gaming facility manager from placing wagers with such manager;

(8) Any person placing wagers as agents or proxies for other person; and

9 Any person placing wagers who convicted of any felony or misdemeanor offense
involving sports wagering;

(q) “Sports book” means a designated area in a lottery gaming facility offering sports
wagering in accordance with established regulations.

(r) “Sports wagering account” means an account established through a lottery gaming
facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider for an individual patron to
use for sports wagering.

(s) “Sports wagering kiosk” means an automated device that may be used for sports
wagering ticket processing and other automated functions as approved by the executive director.

(t) “Sports wagering operation” means the Kansas Lottery business of accepting
wagers pursuant to the Kansas Expanded Lottery Act, as amended, at a lottery gaming facility,
through an interactive sports wagering platform or pursuant to a marketing agreement approved
by the executive director of the Kansas Lottery.

(u) “Sports Wagering Manager” means a licensed sports book employee who is
responsible for operating the interactive sports wagering platform and providing final approval of

all odds established on an agreed upon wager.



112-201-1
Page 5

(v) “Sports wagering registrant” means an individual or entity that is contracted to
provide goods or services that the executive director determines affects the conduct of sports
wagering but falls outside the scope of an interactive sports wagering platform certification or a
vendor’s certification.

(w)  “Sports wagering ticket” means a printed record issued or an electronic record
maintained by the interactive sports wagering platform that evidences a sports wager.

(x) “Sports wagering voucher” means a printed record, or digital representation
thereof, issued by an interactive sports wagering platform that may be used to fund a wager or
may be redeemable for cash.

(y) “Sports wagering promotional credit” means any cashable or non-cashable credit,
free play, patron incentives, coupon or voucher redeemable by a patron and issued in accordance
with a promotional program or activity approved by the Kansas Lottery.

() “Strong authentication” means a method that has been demonstrated to the
satisfaction of the executive director to effectively provide higher security than a username and
password alone.

(aa)  “Ticket writer” means a cashier that handles sports wagering transactions.

(bb)  “Voided wager” means a sports wager voided by an employee of the lottery
gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform operator and approved pursuant
to the internal controls or house rules.

(cc)  “Wager” means any commitment of credits or money by the patron on the results

of events.



112-201-1
Page 6

(dd) “Wagering Communication” means the transmission of a wager between a point
of origin and a point of reception by aid of a communications technology.

(ee)  “Wagering Instructions” means the instructions given by a patron on the grounds
of a sports book who maintains a sports wagering account to effect a wagering communication to
an interactive sports wagering platform. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-2. Accounting controls for the Sports book. (a) A ticket writer shall begin a shift
with an imprest amount of sports wagering inventory, consisting of currency and coin. No funds
shall be added to or removed from the sports wagering inventory during such shift except:

(1) in collection of sports wagers;

(2) in order to make change for a patron buying a sports wagering ticket;

3) in collection for the issuance of sports wagering vouchers;

(4) in payment of winning or properly canceled or refunded sports wagering tickets;

(%) in payment of sports wagering vouchers; or

(6) in exchanges with the ticket writer’s cage, a satellite cage, or sports book vault
supported by proper documentation, and which documentation shall be sufficient for accounting
reconciliation purposes.

(b) A sports wagering count sheet shall be completed and signed by a supervisor, and
the following information, at a minimum, shall be recorded thereon at the commencement of a
shift:

(1) The date, time, and shift of preparation.

(2) The denomination of currency and coin in the sports wagering inventory issued to
the ticket writer.

3) The total amount of each denomination of currency and coin in the sports
wagering inventory issued to the ticket writer.

(4) The sports wagering window number to which the ticket writer is assigned.

(%) The signature of the sports wagering shift supervisor.



112-201-2
Page 2

(©) A ticket writer assigned to a ticket writer window shall count and verify the sports
wagering inventory at the sports wagering vault, and shall agree to the count to the sports
wagering count sheet. The ticket writer shall sign the count sheet attesting to the accuracy of the
information recorded thereon. The sports wagering inventory shall be placed in a ticket writer's
drawer and transported directly to the appropriate sports wagering lounge booth window by the
ticket writer.

(d) If the system generated sports wagering window net receipts for the shift do not
agree with the sports wagering count sheet total plus the sports wagering inventory, the shift
supervisor shall record any overage or shortage. If the count does not agree, the ticket writer and
the shift supervisor shall attempt to determine the cause of the discrepancy in the count. Any
discrepancy that cannot be resolved by the ticket writer and the shift supervisor shall be reported
in writing to the department supervisor in charge at such time. Any discrepancy in excess of five
hundred dollars ($500) shall be reported to the commission. The report shall include the:

(1) date on which the discrepancy occurred;

(2) shift during which the discrepancy occurred;

3) name of the ticket writer;

(4) name of the supervisor;

(%) window number; and

(6) amount of the discrepancy.

(e) The sports book shift supervisor shall compare the ticket writer window net for
the shift as generated by the terminal, and if it agrees with the sports wagering count sheet total

plus the sports wagering inventory, shall agree the count to the sports wagering count sheet and



112-201-2
Page 3

sign the sports wagering count sheet attesting to the accuracy. (Authorized by and implementing

K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-3. Reserve requirements. All lottery gaming facility managers or their interactive
sports wagering platforms providers shall maintain a reserve in the form of cash, cash
equivalents, payment processor reserves, payment processor receivables, an irrevocable letter
of credit, a bond, or a combination thereof, of not less than the greater of five hundred
thousand dollars ($500,000) or the amount necessary to ensure the ability to cover the
outstanding sports wagering liability. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-4. Issuance and sports wagering ticket control requirements. (a) Immediately upon
accepting a wager, the interactive sports wagering platform shall create a sports wagering ticket
on which the terms of the wager are written.

(b) Printed sports wagering tickets must bear the name and address of the sports
book.

(©) An interactive sports wagering platform shall be capable of processing lost or
destroyed sports wagering tickets.

(d) When a sports wager is voided or canceled, the lottery gaming facility manager or
its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall clearly indicate that the sports wager is
voided or canceled ensuring it is nonredeemable and log it into the interactive sports wagering
platform indicating the void or cancellation and the identity of the cashier or automated process.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-

)




112-201-5. General wagering requirements. (a) Lottery gaming facility managers or their
interactive sports wagering platform providers may not accept anonymous wagers unless made
with:

(1) Cash and cash equivalents;

(2) Electronic bank transfers of money, including transfers through third parties;

3) Bank and wire transfers of money;

4) Debit and credit cards;

(%) Online and mobile application payment systems that support online money

transfers;

(6) Sports wagering promotional credits provided by a lottery gaming facility

manager; and

(7) Any other payment method approved by the executive director.

(b) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall accept wagers only on its licensed premises, and only at ticket writers or sports
wagering kiosks approved by the executive director or through an interactive sports wagering
platform that has been approved by the executive director.

(©) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall not knowingly accept money or its equivalent purportedly as a wager upon an
event whose outcome has already been determined. A lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider shall not accept a wager on an event unless the
date and time at which the outcome of the event is determined or can be confirmed from reliable

sources satisfactory to the executive director.



112-201-5
Page 2

(d) All accepted wagers shall be listed in the house rules as follows:

(1) Lottery gaming facility managers or their interactive sports wagering platform
providers may accept wagers that comply with the definition of “sports wagering” as defined in
K.S.A. 46-2301 (ss) and have been approved by the executive director.

(2) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall ensure that any statistics/line data that is made available to the patron pertaining to
an event uses a source allowed by the Kansas lottery. The source providing the statistics/line data
shall be accurate and updated in a timely manner.

(e) No lottery gaming facility manager, interactive sports wagering platform
provider, agent or employee of lottery gaming facility manager or an interactive sports wagering
platform provider may accept a wager from a person who the lottery gaming facility manager,
interactive sports wagering platform provider, agent or employee knows or reasonably should
know is a messenger bettor or is placing the wager in violation of state or federal laws.

) No lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider may hold a patron’s money or its equivalent on the understanding that the lottery
gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider will accept the
money as a wager only upon the occurrence of a specified, future contingency, unless a sports
wagering ticket documenting the wager and contingency is issued immediately when the lottery
gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider receives the money
or its equivalent.

(2) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform

provider shall limit each patron to one (1) active and continuously used sports wagering account



112-201-5
Page 3

and username for each interactive sports wagering platform.

(h) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall implement rules and publish procedures to suspend all, but one active account for
any sports wagering patron that establishes, or seeks to establish, multiple active accounts in a
single interactive sports wagering platform, whether directly or by use of another person as a
proxy.

(1) A full age and identity verification must be undertaken before a patron is allowed
to place a wager on an interactive sports wagering platform as follows:

(1) Only patrons twenty-one (21) years of age and older may deposit funds or
participate in wagering. The lottery gaming facility manager and interactive sports wagering
platform provider must deny the ability to deposit funds or participate in wagering to any person
that submits a birth date that indicates the person is under twenty-one (21) years of age.

(2) Age and identity verification must use commercially reasonable standards to
confirm that the patron is not a prohibited sports wagering participant.

3) Details of age and identity verification must be kept in a secure manner.

4) Third-party service providers may be used for age and identity verification of
patrons.

(%) The lottery gaming facility manager and interactive sports wagering platform
provider must have a documented policy for the handling of patrons discovered to be using a
sports wagering account in a fraudulent manner, including, but not limited to:

(A)  The maintenance of information about any patron's activity, such that if fraudulent

activity is detected, the regulatory body has all of the necessary information to take appropriate



112-201-5
Page 4

action;

(B)  The suspension of any patron account discovered to be providing access to
fraudulent patrons; and

(C)  The treatment of deposits, wagers, and wins associated with a fraudulent patron's
sports wagering account. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by

L.2022, ch.91; effective T- J)




112-201-6. Wagers and payouts over $10,000. (a) Prior to accepting any wager in excess of
$10,000 or making a withdrawl in excess of $10,000 on a winning wager the lottery gaming
facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall:

(1) Obtain the patron’s name

(2) Obtain the patron’s permanent address

3) Obtain the patron’s Social Security number or Passport number

4) Obtain one of the following I.D. Credentials from the patron:

(A)  U.S. Government issued photo identification

(B)  Government issued Passport

(%) Examine the identification credential obtained to verify the patron’s name and the
accuracy of the information obtained pursuant to paragraphs (b) and (c).

(b) Prior to accepting a wager in excess of $10,000 or making a payout in excess of
$10,000 on a winning wager, if an lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports
wagering platform provider knows a person is placing a wager or receiving a payout allowed by
the Executive Director on behalf of another person, the licensee shall obtain and record the
information required by paragraphs (1) though (5) of subsection (a) with respect to all persons
for whom the wager was placed or the payout was received.

(©) Subsequent to accepting a wager in excess of $10,000 or making a payout in
excess of $10,000 on a winning wager, the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive
sports wagering platform provider shall record or maintain records that include:

(1) The patron’s name;

(2) The patron’s address;



112-201-6
Page 2

3) The patron’s social security number or Passport number;

(4) A description including any document number of the identification credential
examined;

(%) The amount of the wager or payout;

(6) The Window number or other identification of the location where the wager or
payout occurred;

(7) The time and date of the wager or payout;

(8) The names and signatures of the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive
sports wagering platform provider employees accepting or approving the wager and payout on
the wager; and

9 Any other information as required by the executive director. An lottery gaming
facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall not implement
alternative procedures to comply with this subsection without the written approval of the
executive director.

(d) Each lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall report the wagers or payouts required to be recorded pursuant to this section on a,
“large transaction report”, a form published or approved by the executive director that includes,
but is not limited to:

(1) The patron’s name;

(2) The patron’s government issued identification credential information;

3) The patron’s social security number or Passport number;

4) Wager and payout amounts; and



112-201-6
Page 3

(%) Dates of transactions.

(e) Reports shall be submitted to the Commission, no later than 30 days after the end
of the month of the occurrence of the transaction and in such a manner as the Executive Director
may approve or require. Each lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering
platform provider shall file an amended report if the licensee obtains information to correct or
complete a previously submitted report. Each lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive
sports wagering platform provider shall retain a copy of each report filed at least 2 years unless
the Executive Director requires retention for a longer period of time.

® Each lottery gaming facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider’s internal control system shall include internal controls to meet the requirements of 31
C.F.R. Part 1021 for the reporting of certain currency transactions. The internal controls shall be
submitted to and approved by the commission according to K.A.R. 112-104-1.

(1) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall file with the commission a copy of any suspicious activity report (SAR) the
facility manager is required to file under 31 C.F.R. §1021.320. Each SAR shall be filed with the
commission concurrently with the federal filing.

(2) A lottery gaming facility manager, interactive sports wagering platform provider,
director, officer, employee, or agent who reports a suspicious activity under paragraph (f)(1)
shall not notify any person involved in the suspicious activity that the suspicious activity has

been reported.

3) The facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall file

with the commission a copy of any currency transaction report (CTR) that the lottery gaming



112-201-6
Page 4

facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider is required to file under 31
CFR §1021.311. Each CTR shall be filed with the commission concurrently with the federal
filing. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91;

effective T- )




112-201-7. Multiple wagers. (a) A Lottery gaming facility manager and its employees shall not
knowingly allow, and each interactive sports wagering platform provider shall take reasonable
steps to prevent, the circumvention of K.A.R. 112-201-6 by multiple wagers within its
designated gaming day with a patron or by the use of a series of wagers that are designed to
accomplish indirectly that which could not be accomplished directly. As part of a lottery gaming
facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform provider’s efforts to prevent such
circumventions relative to K.A.R. 112-201-6, a lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive
sports wagering platform provider shall establish and implement wagering multiple transaction
logs.

(b) Each lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall record in the wagering multiple transaction log, all cash wagers of $3000 or more
and properly complete a currency transaction report (CTR) for all single cash transactions and
for a series of multiple cash transactions in excess of $10,000.

(©) Each log entry in a wagering multiple transaction log shall be made by the
employee accepting or approving the wager, immediately after accepting the wager, and shall
include at a minimum:

(1) Description of the patron’s attributes, which may include such identifiers as age,
sex, race, eye color, hair, weight, height, attire, if the person is present when the wager is
accepted;

(2) Patron’s name, if known;

3) Window number or other identification of the location where the wager occurred;

)] Time and date of the wager;



112-201-7
Page 2

(%) Dollar amount of the wager; and

(6) Signature or electronic signature of the person accepting or approving the wager.

(d) One log shall be maintained for each monitoring area, for each gaming day. A log
is completed for each gaming day regardless of whether any wagers occurred. At the conclusion
of each designated gaming day, the last entry on a log which is recorded manually shall be an
indication that the end of the gaming day has occurred. A lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider shall not implement alternative procedures or
records to comply with this subsection without the written approval of the executive director.

(e) Each lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall aggregate all wagers in excess of $5,000 or smaller amounts when any single
employee has actual knowledge of the wagers or would in the ordinary course of business, have
a reason to know of the wagers between the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive
sports wagering platform provider and a patron or a person who the lottery gaming facility
manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider knows or has reason to know is the
patron’s collaborative during a gaming day within a monitoring area.

) Before completing a wager that, when aggregated with other wagers pursuant to
subsection (e), shall aggregate to an amount that will exceed $10,000, the lottery gaming facility
manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall complete the identification and
recordkeeping requirements described in subsection (a) of K.A.R. 112-201-6. When aggregated
wagers exceed $10,000, the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering
platform provider shall complete the recordkeeping and reporting requirements of K.A.R. 112-

201-6.



112-201-7
Page 3

(2) If a patron places a wager that pursuant to subsection (e) is to be aggregated with
previous wagers for which a record has been completed pursuant to this section or K.A.R. 112-
201-6, the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider
shall complete the identification, recordation and reporting procedures described in K.A.R. 112-
201-9 for any additional wager regardless of amount occurring during a gaming day.

(h) As used in this section:

(1) “Gaming Day”, means the period that corresponds with the lottery gaming facility
manager’s gaming day that has been previously approved by the executive director.

(2) “Monitoring Area”, means all ticket writing locations unless otherwise approved
by the executive director. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L.

2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-8. Structured wagers. (a) A Lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports
wagering platform provider shall not encourage or instruct the patron to structure or attempt to
structure wagers. This subsection does not prohibit a lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider from informing a patron of the regulatory
requirements imposed upon the sports book, including the definition of structured wagers.

(b) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall not knowingly assist a patron in structuring or attempting to structure wagers.

(©) As used in this section, “structure wagers” or “structuring wagers”, means to
willfully conduct or attempt to conduct a series of wagers in any amount, at one or more sports
book(s), on one or more days in any manner as to willfully evade or circumvent the recording
and reporting requirements of K.A.R. 112-201-6 at any single sports book in any gaming day in
order to constitute structuring within the meaning of this definition. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-9. Recordkeeping and reporting requirements. (a) The lottery gaming facility
manager and its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall maintain compliance with the
identification, recordkeeping and reporting requirements of K.A.R. 112-201-6 and 112-201-7.

(b) The lottery gaming facility manager and its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall comply with all requirements of K.A.R. 112-104-6.

(©) The lottery gaming facility manager and its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall also comply with all Federal Anti-Money Laundering and all other recordkeeping
and reporting requirements.

(d) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall maintain records of:

(1) All wagers placed, including personally identifiable information of the person
placing the wager;

(2) the amount and type of wager;

3) the time the wager was placed;

(4) the location of the wager, including the IP address, if applicable;

(%) the outcome of the wager;

(6) any records of abnormal wagering activity; and

(7) video camera recordings, in the case of in-person wagers.

(e) Any interactive sports wagering platform used by a lottery gaming facility
manager shall allow any individual placing a sports wager through such platform to elect to not

have such individual’s personally identifiable information collected by such platform or by such



112-201-9
Page 2

lottery gaming facility manager for any purpose other than recording the placing of the sports
wager, payment of any prize, or as authorized by the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.
® The records described in subsections (d)(1) through (d)(6) and any other reports
deemed necessary by the executive director shall be maintained for at least two years after the
sporting event occurs. Video recordings described in subsection (d)(7) shall be maintained for at
least 30 days after the sporting event occurs. A lottery gaming facility manager and its
interactive sports wagering platform provider shall make such records available for inspection
upon request by the Kansas Lottery or the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission or as
required by court order. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L.

2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-10. Payment of winning wagers. (a) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection,
lottery gaming facility manager or their interactive sports wagering platform providers shall
make a payment on a winning anonymous wager to the patron who presents the patron’s original
sports wagering ticket representing the wager. A lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider shall not make payment to a patron who the
interactive sports wagering platform knows or reasonably should know is collecting the payment
on behalf of another monetary consideration or in violation of federal law. A lottery gaming
facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider may withhold payment of a
winning wager if a patron refuses to supply identification or any other documentation required
by state or federal law.

(b) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall honor winning sports wagering tickets for 180 days after the ticket has been settled
unless a longer period is approved by the executive director. The lottery gaming facility manager
or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall state the redemption period on each
sports wagering ticket on the house rules and on notices conspicuously placed about the licensed
premises. Interactive sports wagering platforms shall maintain the information and
documentation presented for a period of two years.

(©) Any patron unclaimed winnings shall meet all requirements of K.A.R. 112-104-
32.(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L.2022, ch. 91; effective

T- )




112-201-11. Wager Cancellations. Lottery gaming facility managers or their interactive sports
wagering platform providers shall provide internal controls pertaining to wagering transactions
that can be voided or cancelled.

(a) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider may, in its discretion, void or cancel an accepted wagering transaction for an obvious
error. An obvious error must be defined in the internal controls.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in this article, a lottery gaming facility manager or
its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall not unilaterally void or cancel any wager
without the prior approval of the executive director. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A.

74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-12. Reporting of suspicious activity. (a) As used in this section, “suspicious
transaction” means a transaction which a lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports
wagering platform provider knows or, in the judgment of its employees, has reason to suspect:

(1) Is, or would be if completed, in violation, or is part of a plan to violate or evade,
any federal, state, or local law or regulation;

(2) Is, or would be if completed, wagering by, or on behalf of, a coach or participant
in a sporting event or other event on such event;

3) Is, or would be if completed, a structure wager as defined in KAR 112-201-8; or

4) Has no business or apparent lawful purpose or is not the sort of transaction the
patron would normally be expected to perform, and the lottery gaming facility manager knows of
no reasonable explanation for the transaction after examining the available facts, including the
background of the transaction.

(b) A lottery gaming facility manager:

(1) Shall file with the commission, by using a form Suspicious Activity Report (SAR)
to report any suspicious transaction, if it involves or aggregates to more than $5,000 in funds or
other assets; and

(2) May file a report of any suspicious transaction, regardless of the amount if the
lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider believes it is
relevant to the possible violation of any law or regulation.

3) Shall utilize an independent integrity monitoring provider to identify non-normal
irregualrities in volume or odds swings that could signal suspicious activity and further

investigation.



112-201-12
Page 2

(A) Insituations involving immediate attention, the lottery gaming facility manager
shall immediately notify the on-site Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission in addition to
timely filing of a report as determined by the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.

(B)  Internal Controls shall state details for how integrity monitoring efforts and
notifications pertaining to them will be handled.

(©) The report in subsection (b)(2) shall be filed no later than 30 calendar days after
the initial detection by the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering
platform provider of facts that may constitute a basis for filing such a report.

(d) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall maintain a copy of any report filed and the original of business record equivalent
of any supporting documentation for a period of five years from the date of the filing the report.
Supporting documentation shall be identified and maintained by the lottery gaming facility
manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider as such and shall be deemed to have
been filed with the report. The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering
platform provider shall make all supporting documentation available to the board and any
appropriate law enforcement/regulatory agencies upon request of the executive director.

(e) A lottery gaming facility manager and or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider employees who file a report pursuant to this regulation shall not notify any person
involved in the transaction that the transaction has been reported. Any report filed with the
executive director is privileged and may be disclosed only by the executive director in the

necessary administration of their duties and responsibilities under the Kansas Expanded Lottery



112-201-12
Page 3

Act. Any report, whether written or oral, is absolutely privileged and does not impose liability
for defamation or constitute a ground for recovery in any civil action.

® Nothing in this regulation shall be construed as relieving a lottery gaming facility
manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider from meeting any obligation to
prepare or maintain any book, record, or document required by any other federal, state, or local
governmental body, authority, or agency. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-13. Wagers, terms and conditions. (a) The terms and conditions of this subsection do
not prohibit the granting of the following by an interactive sports wagering platform provider or
a licensed lottery gaming facility manager where the sports book is located or an affiliate of one
or more of those entities that holds a gaming license:

(1) Room, food, and beverage, that are available to the public from other sources,
including spa services, movies, bowling and entertainment admissions;

(2) Limousine or other car service transportation to and from the gaming
establishment where the sports book is located; or

3) Merchandise or other non-cash equivalents not exceeding $600 per patron per
week with the value of such $600 determined by the interactive sports wagering platform
provider or the lottery gaming facility manager cost.

(b) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider, including all marketing entities that have contracted with the lottery gaming facility
manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider to provide sports wagering, may
award loyalty program points based on wagers placed by a patron; however, such points may
only be redeemed in accordance with the rules of the program, or for items or services that do
not fall under one of the exceptions listed under subsection (b). The lottery gaming facility
manager shall require and explanation of the loyalty program in their internal controls.

(©) Complimentaries issued by a sports wagering operation will follow the
requirements of KAR 112-104-9.

(d) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform

provider shall not, in an attempt to provide a benefit to the patron in violation of subsection (a),



112-201-13
Page 2

offer a wagering proposition, or set or move its wagering odds, lines or limits, or do anything
that would violate their house rules.

(e) Other than as part of an approved promotional mechanism, an interactive sports
wagering platform provider shall not set lines or odds, or offer wagering propositions, designed
for the purposes of ensuring that a patron will win a wager or series of wagers. (Authorized by

and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-

)




112-201-14. Wagering communications, establishing patron wagering for sporting events.
(a) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall
only accept sport wagering initiated from within the State of Kansas. Each lottery gaming facility
manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall conspicuously display signs to
that effect on its premises.

(b) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall not accept wagering instructions for sport wagers unless the transmission of the
wagering instructions is initiated from within the State of Kansas.

(©) Each lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider that accepts wagering communications shall establish and implement a system of
internal controls for such transactions and comply with both its system of internal controls and
all other applicable Kansas Administrative Regulations.

(d) Each lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall prepare a written description of its house rules and procedures for wagering
communications and shall make a copy available to all patrons upon request.

(e) Before each lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering
platform provider accepts a wagering communication on any sports wager or any other event
wager over the internet, the following must occur:

(1) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall register patrons and create sports wagering accounts”, either remotely or in person,

as follows:



112-201-14
Page 2

(A)  Identity verification shall be undertaken before a patron is allowed to place a
wager. To confirm a player’s identity, the patron shall provide the following registration
information:

(1) The patron’s full legal name;

(11) The patron’s date of birth;

(ii1))  The patron’s permanent residential address (other than P.O. Box);

(iv)  The patron’s Social Security number, or the last four (4) digits of the Social
Security number, or an equivalent identification number for a noncitizen patron, such as a
passport or taxpayer identification number; and

(v) Any other information collected from the patron used to verify his or her identity
and to prove the patron is at least twenty-one (21) years of age.

(B)  An lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider may register and create sports wagering accounts for patrons, including inspecting a
patron’s registration information provided in (A) to confirm their identity, as required by filing a
request with the executive director for permission to have its employees register and create sports
wagering accounts for patrons. The request must include a comprehensive marketing plan setting
out, at a minimum, the types of locations and types of potential patrons which a lottery gaming
facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider intends to send its
employees for the purposes of registering and creating sports wagering accounts for patrons. A
lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider may not act
under its marketing plan prior to the executive director approving the request. The executive

director may impose limitations and conditions on any approved request. The executive director



112-201-14
Page 3

may rescind approval of a request of a lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports
wagering platform provider to have its employees register and create accounts outside the
premises of the sports book upon written notice to the lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider.

(2) Before registering a patron for a sports wagering account, the lottery gaming
facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall have the patron affirm
that the patron has been informed and acknowledges that patrons are prohibited by law from
placing sports wagers and other event wagers while physically located outside of Kansas, and
that the interactive sports wagering platform is prohibited from accepting such wagers.

® A lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider may place a layoff wager with another sports wagering licensee located in the state of
Kansas for the purpose of offsetting patron wagers provided that:

(1) The lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider placing the layoff wager discloses the identity to the licensee receiving the layoff
wager; and

(2) The receiving licensee agrees to accept the layoff wager after notification of the
identity of the sports wagering licensee placing the layoff wager is provided. The lottery gaming
facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering provider’s employee must record:

(A)  The authorized employee for the other lottery gaming facility manager’s or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider’s name, permanent business address (other than a

P.O. Box), and business telephone number;



112-201-14
Page 4

(B)  The documents used to verify the other lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider is an lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider and that the authorized employee is an employee
of the other lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider,
and 1s authorized to open this sports wagering account;

(C)  The amount of the authorized employee of the other lottery gaming facility
manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform providers’s initial sports wagering account
or front money deposit;

(D)  The authorized employee of the other lottery gaming facility manager’s or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider’s account number with the interactive sports
wagering platform; and

(E)  The date the authorized employee of the other lottery gaming facility manager’s
or its interactive sports wagering platform provider’s account with the sports book is opened.

3) The authorized employee of the other lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider must sign, in the presence of a supervising
employee of the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider, statements attesting that the authorized employee of the lottery gaming facility
manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider:

(A)  Confirms the accuracy of the information recorded;

(B)  Has received a copy, or has had a copy made available to them, of the interactive

sports wagering platform’s house rules and procedures for sports wagering communications;



112-201-14
Page 5

(C)  Has been informed and understands that authorized employees of other lottery
gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platforms providers that establish a
sports wagering account pursuant to this subsection are prohibited by law from placing wagering
communications from outside the state of Kansas and that the lottery gaming facility manager or
its interactive sports wagering platform provider is prohibited by law from accepting them; and

(D)  Consents to the monitoring and recording by the executive director and the lottery
gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider of any wagering
communication.

(4) The employee who verifies the authorized employee of the other lottery gaming
facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform provider’s information and who
obtains and records the information on behalf of the lottery gaming facility manager’s or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider and the supervising employee described in
subparagraph (c), must each sign statements that they witnessed the authorized employee’s
signature and confirmed the authorized employee of the other lottery gaming facility manager’s
or its interactive sports wagering platform provider’s identity and residence.

(2) In addition to the posting of the wager in the interactive sports wagering platform,
all wagering communications shall be electronically recorded and retained for a period of two
years. The method of recording the wager must be approved by the executive director. Such
recordings shall be made immediately available to any enforcement agent upon request.

(h) All sports wagering account applications or amendments thereto for active
accounts shall be retained by the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports

wagering platform provider. All sports wagering account applications or amendments thereto for



112-201-14
Page 6

rejected applications shall be retained by the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive
sports wagering platform provider for no less than two years following the rejection of the
related application. All sports wagering account applications or amendments thereto for closed
accounts shall be retained by the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports
wagering platform provider for no less than two years following the closure of the related sports
wagering account.

(1) An lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall not allow the use of a sports wagering account established pursuant to this section
for forms of gaming other than sports wagering or other event wagering unless administrative
approval has been granted by the executive director. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A.

74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-15. Lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider duties. (a) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering
platform provider shall provide for the patron’s review and confirmation of all wagering
information before the wagering communication is accepted by the interactive sports wagering
platform. The interactive sports wagering platform shall create a record of the confirmation. This
record of the communication of the wager shall be deemed an actual transaction of records,
regardless of whether or not that wager was recorded by the interactive sports wagering platform,;

(b) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall prohibit wagers from being changed after the patron has reviewed and confirmed
the wagering information, and the specific wagering communication transaction has been
completed.

(©) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall prohibit the acceptance of wagers after post time.

(d) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall prohibit an interactive sports wagering platform from accepting an account wager,
or a series of account wagers, in an amount in excess of the available balance of the wagering
account;

(e) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall prohibit an interactive sports wagering platform from accepting out-of-state sports
wagers.

) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall post payment on winning account wagers as a credit to the patron’s wagering

account based on approved house rules.



112-201-15
Page 2

(2) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall maintain complete records of every deposit, withdrawal, wager, winning payoff
and other debit or credit for each account;

(h) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall not permit a patron to transfer funds from a sports wagering account to another
sports wagering account.

(1) Lottery gaming facility managers or their interactive sports wagering platform
providers shall provide an account statement with account details to a patron on demand, which
shall include detailed account activity for at least six (6) months. In addition, a lottery gaming
facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall, upon request, be
capable of providing a summary statement of all patron activity during the past two (2) years.

() A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider
shall periodically re-verify a patron's identification upon reasonable suspicion that the patron's
identification has been compromised.

(k) The utilization of funds to place a wager under this regulation shall be initiated
only by a patron using an access control, such as a password. Access controls shall require the
use of a unique access code for each patron. The access code shall be selected by and available
to only the patron.

) A patron’s sports wagering account may be funded using approved methods
which shall produce a sufficient audit trail for verification of the source of the deposits.
Approved methods include:

(1) Cash and cash equivalents;

(2) Electronic bank transfers of money, including transfers through third parties;



112-201-15
Page 3

3) Bank and wire transfers of money;

(4) Debit and credit cards;

(%) online and mobile application payment systems that support online money
transfers;

(6) Sports wagering promotional credits provided by a lottery gaming facility
manager; and

(7) Any other payment method approved by the executive director.

(m)  Lottery gaming facility managers or their interactive sports wagering platform
providers shall provide a conspicuous and readily accessible method for a patron to close the
patron's account through the account management or similar page or through the lottery gaming
facility manager’s or interactive sports wagering platform provider’s customer support team.
Any withdrawable balance remaining in a patron's sports wagering account closed by a patron
shall be returned to the patron under the lottery gaming facility manager’s or its interactive sports
wagering platform provider’s internal controls.

(n) A patron must be allowed to withdraw the funds maintained in the patron's open
sports wagering account. Internal controls should state the process for the patron to receive funds
from an account that has been closed.

(o) A lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider must honor such patron request to withdraw funds within five (5) business days of the
request, unless the conditions set forth in subsection (p) are met.

(p) The lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider may decline to honor a patron request to withdraw funds only if the lottery gaming

facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider believes in good faith that



112-201-15
Page 4

the patron engaged in either fraudulent conduct or other conduct that would put the lottery
gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform provider in violation of the law.
In such cases, the lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall conduct its investigation in a reasonable and expedient fashion, providing the
patron additional written notice of the status of the investigation every tenth business day starting
from the day of the patron request.

(qQ) For purposes of this provision, a request for withdrawal will be considered
honored if it is processed by the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering
platform provider notwithstanding a delay by a payment processor, credit card issuer, or the
custodian of a financial account.

(r) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall consider a patron account to be dormant if the patron has not logged into the
account for at least three (3) years.

(1) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall provide notice to the patron prior to closing a dormant account. The notice shall
provide options to reactivate the account prior to closure. Funds of patrons that remain in a
dormant patron account shall be presumed abandoned.

(2) The lottery gaming facility manager or is interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall report and deliver all funds of patrons that are presumed abandoned as required
under the Kansas Expanded Lottery Act and applicable regulations. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-

)




112-201-16. House rules requirements. (a) House rules shall be approved by the Kansas

Lottery and approved house rules must be submitted to the executive director..

(b)

House rules shall establish operational procedures on how to deal with the

following anomalies:

(1)
)
)
(4)
©)
(6)
(7)
(8)
are canceled.
)
(10)

and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-

Wager adjustments;

Event cancellations;
Schedule changes;

Rain delays/Game rainouts;
Rejected wagers;

Canceled wagers;
Overtime/end of regulation;

Handling of wagers with multiple events such as parlays when (1) or more legs

Injuries; and

Any situation that can potentially affect the terms of the wager. (Authorized by




112-201-17. Assign regulatory staff. The executive director at any time may require a lottery
gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider to allow Kansas
racing and gaming commission staff to be permanently present on the sport book’s premises, and
to require the costs and expenses for such Kansas racing and gaming commission staff to be
borne by the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider
in a manner deemed reasonable by the executive director. Kansas racing and gaming commission
staff shall have full and complete access to all books, records, emails, and any telephone
conversations originating from or received at the licensed premises. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-18. Records and forms. Lottery gaming facility managers or their interactive sports
wagering platform providers shall create and maintain the records and reports required by this
article in such manner by using forms that the executive director requires. All forms shall be
approved by the executive director. The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports
wagering platform provider shall maintain all records required in KAR 112-201-9. The
executive director may also require the lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports
wagering platform provider to create and maintain such other records and reports as are
necessary or convenient for operation of interactive sports wagering platforms. The commission
and the Kansas lottery may at any time examine and copy records of any lottery gaming facility
manager or interactive sports wagering platform provider. (Authorized by and implementing

K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- )




112-201-19. Sports wagering requirements. (a) The sports book, professional sports team, or
auto racetrack facility shall utilize ticket writers or sports wagering kiosks for wagering
transactions in a location approved by the executive director. Sports wagering kiosks shall be
subject to the approvals and other requirements of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.
This does not preclude the use of a remote wagering devices throughout the lottery gaming
facility, or at a professional sports team or auto racetrack facility.

(b) Each lottery gaming facility manager shall file with the commission a schedule
setting forth the specific times at which the canisters will be brought to or removed from the
sports wagering kiosks. The sports wagering kiosk drop shall be monitored and recorded by
surveillance. The sports wagering kiosk drop schedule and drop route shall be approved by the
executive director. All sports wagering kiosk drop procedures shall be incorporated in the
internal controls.

(1) The bill validator and bill validator canisters must meet the requirements of
K.AR. 112-104-17.

(2) The issuance, receipt, and reconciliation of imprest funds used by sports wagering
kiosks shall be completed in accordance with KAR 112-201-2(%).

(©) Whenever a point-of-sale is opened/closed for wagering or turned over to a new
ticket writer, the ticket writer signs on/off and the interactive sports wagering platform creates a
point-of-sale session record indicating the ticket writer’s identity, the date and time, the point-of-
sale number, and the fact that the point-of-sale was opened/closed. A point-of-sale session shall
timeout within an appropriate time after the last input. When the timeout occurs must be based

upon at least, but not limited to, the amount of security provided by lottery gaming facility



112-201-19
Page 2

manager personnel near the Point-of-Sale, the physical barriers that limit access to the Point-of-
Sale, and the frequency of sports wagers being made at the Point-of-Sale. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T J)




112-201-20. Sports Wagering requirements. (a) Payment by sports wagering voucher as a
method of credit redemption is only permissible when the interactive sports wagering platform
supports this functionality.

(b) A sports wagering voucher shall contain the following information:

(1) Sports book name/site identification (for a printed paper voucher, it is permissible
for the information to be contained on the ticket stock itself);

(2) Ticket writer or sports wagering kiosk which issued the voucher;

3) Date and time the sports wagering voucher was issued;

4) Numeric value of the sports wagering voucher in dollars and cents;

(%) Voucher number (and which for a printed paper voucher, must appear on the
leading edge of the sports wagering);

(6) Bar code or any machine readable code representing the validation number;

(7) Indication if the sports wagering voucher is a “duplicate”;

(8) Type of transaction or other method of differentiating sports wagering voucher
types,;

9 Responsible gambling information (for a printed paper voucher, it is permissible
for the information to be contained on the ticket stock itself); and

(10) Indication of an expiration date which is 180 days from the date of issue (for a
printed paper voucher, this must be printed on the sports wagering voucher).

(©) An interactive sports wagering platform shall not be configured to issue a gaming

ticket exceeding $10,000.



112-201-20
Page 2

(d) The sports wagering voucher record on the interactive sports wagering platform
shall contain the following sports wagering voucher information:

(1) Voucher number;

(2) Date and time the sports wagering voucher was issued;

3) Type of transaction or other method of differentiating sports wagering voucher
types,;

(4) Numeric value of the sports wagering voucher in dollars and cents;

(%) Status of sports wagering voucher (i.e. valid, unredeemed, pending, void, invalid,
redemption in progress, redeemed, etc.);

(6) Date and time the sports wagering voucher will expire;

(7) Ticket writer or sports wagering kiosk which issued the sports wagering voucher;
and

(8) Date and time the sports wagering voucher was redeemed, voided, or expired.

(e) Before redeeming a sports wagering voucher, the complete validation number of
the unredeemed sports wagering voucher shall be available only to the platform when accessed
by users with supervisor or higher authority.

® Sports wagering vouchers can be redeemed at a sports wagering kiosk, point-of-
sale, ticket writer booths or other kiosks as approved by the executive director, and provided they
support sports wagering voucher validation with a interactive sports wagering platform.

(2) Upon presentation of a sports wagering voucher for redemption, the interactive

sports wagering platform shall be used to verify the validity of the serial number and value of the



112-201-20
Page 3

voucher, and if valid, the platform shall immediately update the sports wagering voucher status
and permit the redemption of the voucher for the value indicated thereon.
(h) The interactive sports wagering platform shall have the ability to identify these
occurrences and notify the cashier or ticket writer that one of the following conditions exists:
(1) Sports wagering voucher cannot be found (beyond expiration date, forgery, etc);
(2) Sports wagering voucher has already been paid; or
3) Amount of sports wagering voucher for confirmation by a cashier or ticket writer
during the redemption process. (Authorized and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by

L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-21. Patron Disputes. (a) Patron disputes or complaints concerning the payment of
alleged winnings will be addressed in accordance with KAR 112-104-33 Disputes.

(b) A lottery gaming facility manager and interactive sports wagering platform
providers must include on its interactive sports wagering platform a notice or link to advise
patrons of their right to make a complaint against the lottery gaming facility manager or
interactive sports wagering platform provider, including information explaining how complaints
may be filed, how complaints are resolved, and how the patron may submit a complaint to the
Kansas Racing & Gaming Commission. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-201-22. Sports Wagering Transactions. To offer sports wagering on behalf of the
Kansas lottery at the lottery gaming facility, a lottery gaming facility manager with an approved
sports wagering management contract shall submit internal controls along with a floor plan and
corresponding surveillance floor plan to the Kansas Racing & Gaming Commission.

(a) The floor plan shall be approved by the executive director.

(b) The Internal Controls shall be approved by the Kansas Racing & Gaming
Commission.

(©) Sports wagering transactions shall be conducted from:

(1) A counter or window located in the sports book or other cage cashier window
locations as approved by the executive director;

(2) Sports wagering kiosks in locations as approved by the executive director; or

3) A mobile application installed on a mobile device or accessed over the internet
through a website within the geographical boundaries of Kansas. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-




112-201-23. Internal controls. (a) Each applicant for a lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider certificate shall submit to the commission and the
Kansas lottery a written plan of the applicant’s initial system of administrative and accounting
procedures, including its internal controls and audit protocols prior to the deadline set by the
executive director to begin sports wagering operations. This plan shall be called the internal
control system. The lottery gaming facility manager shall be responsible for and shall submit all
the internal controls for sports wagering. The internal controls shall specify the functions that
the interactive sports wagering platforms will perform to meet regulatory obligations. The
internal controls shall include the following:

(1) An organization chart and job descriptions that outline appropriate segregation of
duties.

(2) a description of the duties and responsibilities of each licensed or permitted
position shown on the organization charts and the lines of authority;

3) a detailed narrative description of the administrative and accounting
procedures designed to satisty the requirements of this article;

4) a record retention policy in accordance with K.A.R. 112-104-8;

(%) the following controls and procedures:

(A)  Administrative controls that include the procedures and records that relate to the
decision making processes leading to management's authorization of transactions;

(B)  accounting controls that have as their primary objectives the safeguarding of
assets and revenues and the reliability of financial records. The accounting controls shall be

designed to provide reasonable assurance that all of the following conditions are met:



112-201-23
Page 2

(1) The transactions or financial events that occur in the operation of sports wagering
are executed in accordance with management's general and specific authorization;

(i)  the transactions or financial events that occur in the operation of sports wagering
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles, the act, and this article;

(i)  the transactions or financial events that occur in the operation of sports wagering
are recorded in a manner that provides reliable records, accounts and reports, including the
recording of cash and evidence of indebtedness, for use in the preparation of reports to the
commission related to sports wagering;

(iv)  access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's general and
specific authorization; and

(v) the recorded accountability for assets is compared with existing physical assets at
reasonable intervals, and appropriate action is taken with respect to any discrepancies;

(C)  procedures and controls for ensuring that all functions, duties, and responsibilities
are segregated and performed in accordance with legitimate financial practices by trained
personnel;

(D)  procedures and controls for ensuring all applicable sports wagering technical
standards are followed;

(6) a completed internal control checklist;

(7) Problem gambling program procedures as required by KAR 112-112-3.

(8) Any other internal control deemed necessary by the executive director.

(b) The internal controls shall address the following items regarding sports wagering,



112-201-23
Page 3

at a minimum:

(1) An overview of the interactive sports wagering platform design;

(2) Detail the location of the sports wagering servers, including any third-party remote
location servers, and what controls will be in place to ensure security of the interactive sports
wagering platform servers;

3) If an interactive sports wagering platform allows online wagering, method for
verifying geolocation systems to establish a patron's geographic location;

(4)  User access controls for all KRGC-authorized sports wagering personnel,

5) Override policies and restrictions;

(6) Logical and physical access controls and restrictions;

(7) Network security;

(8) Terms & Conditions for establishing a sports wagering account;

9) Automated and manual risk management procedures;

(10)  Procedures for identifying and reporting fraud and suspicious conduct including
identifying unusual betting activity and reporting such activity to the KRGC as required by KAR
112-104-6(n);

(11)  Description of anti-money laundering, CFR, Title 31 compliance standards, which
shall include limitations placed on anonymous wagering at sports wagering kiosks as required by
(KAR 112-104-6(n));

(12)  Process for submitting or receiving approval of all types of wagers available to be
offered by the interactive sports wagering platform;

(13)  Description of the process for line setting and line moving;



112-201-23
Page 4

(14)  Inthe event of a failure of the interactive sports wagering platform’s ability to pay
winning tickets, the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall have internal controls detailing the method of manually paying winning tickets.
The lottery gaming facility manager, or its contracted interactive sports wagering platform
provider, shall file an incident report for each platform failure and document the date, time, and
reason for the failure along with the date and time the platform is restored to the executive
director of the Kansas Racing & Gaming Commission;

(15)  Detail the procedure for reconciliation of assets and documents contained in any
ticket writer’s drawer and sports wagering kiosks, which shall include the drop and count
procedures for sports wagering kiosks.

(16)  Detailed procedures for making adjustments to a patron's account, providing a
method for a patron’s sports wagering to close out an account, and detail how a patron will be
refunded after the closure of an account;

(17)  Procedures to prevent wagering by prohibited sports wagering participants;

(18) Identifying and restricting prohibited sports wagering participants;

(19)  Procedures for voluntary or involuntary exclusion of patrons, including the
following:

(A)  Providing a notification containing the voluntary or involuntary exclusion status
and general instructions for resolution or change of status, if applicable;

(B)  Confirmation that immediately upon executing the voluntary or involuntary
exclusion, no new wagers or deposits are accepted from the patron, until such time as the

interactive sports wagering platform provider exclusion has been revoked; and



112-201-23
Page 5

(C)  Confirmation that the patron is not prevented from withdrawing any or all of their
account balance, provided that the lottery gaming facility manager or the interactive sports
wagering platform provider acknowledges that the funds have cleared, and that the reason(s) for
exclusion would not prohibit a withdrawal.

(D) A lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall comply with article 112 regarding its onsite and mobile sports wagering patrons.

(20)  Maintaining the security of identity and financial information of patrons, and in
particular compliance with the provisions of SB 84 of the Kansas Expanded Lottery Act, as
amended;

(21)  Instituting a process to close out dormant accounts;

(22)  Method for securely issuing, modifying, and resetting a patron's account
password, personal identification number (PIN), or other approved security feature, when
applicable;

(23) Methods of patron notification, including any password or security modification
via electronic or regular mail, text message, or other manner approved by the executive director.
Such methods shall include at a minimum:

(A)  Proof of identity, if in person;

(B)  The correct response to two (2) or more challenge questions; or

strong authentication.

(24)  Method by which the lottery gaming facility manager will identify and cancel
wagers, including defining “obvious error”.

(25)  Any other internal control deemed necessary by the executive director.



112-201-23
Page 6

(c) The internal control system shall be accompanied by the following:

(1) An attestation by the chief executive officer or other competent person with a
direct reporting relationship to the chief executive officer attesting that the officer believes in
good faith that the submitted internal controls conform to the requirements of the act and this
article; and

(2) an attestation by the chief financial officer or other competent person with a direct
reporting relationship to the chief financial officer attesting that the officer believes in good faith
that the submitted internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial reporting conforms to generally accepted accounting principles and complies with all
applicable laws and regulations, including the act and this article.

(d) Each internal control system shall be reviewed by the commission in consultation
with the Kansas lottery to determine whether the system conforms to the requirements of the act
and this article and provides adequate and effective controls to ensure the integrity of the
operation of sports wagering at a lottery gaming facility. If the commission determines that the
system is deficient, a written notice of the deficiency shall be provided by the executive director
to the applicant or facility manager. The applicant or lottery gaming facility manager shall be
allowed to submit a revision to its submission. Each lottery gaming facility manager shall be
prohibited from commencing sports wagering operations until its internal control system is
approved by the commission.

(e) If a lottery gaming facility manager intends to update, change, or amend its
internal control system, the facility manager shall submit a written description of the amendment

and the two original, signed certifications described in subsection (c).



112-201-23
Page 7

63) A current version of the internal control system of a lottery gaming facility
manager shall be maintained in or made available in electronic form through secure computer
access to the accounting and surveillance departments of the lottery gaming facility manager and
the commission's on-site facilities. The lottery gaming facility manager shall also maintain a
copy, in either paper or electronic form, of any superseded internal control procedures, along
with the two certifications required to be submitted with these procedures, for at least seven
years. Each page of the internal control system shall indicate the date on which the page was
approved by the commission.

(2) The lottery gaming facility manager shall stamp or otherwise mark each page of
the internal control procedures submitted to the commission with the word "CONFIDENTIAL"
if the material submitted is not subject to disclosure. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A.

74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- )




112-201-24. Waiver of requirements. (a) One or more of the requirements of this article
applicable to sports wagering may be waived by the commission on its own initiative, upon the
commission’s determination that the compensating control or procedure, as documented in a
lottery gaming facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform provider’s internal
control system, meets the operational integrity requirements of the act and this article.

(b) Any lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider may submit a written request to the commission for a waiver for one or more of the
requirements in this article. The request shall be filed on an amendment waiver and request form
and shall include supporting documentation demonstrating how the proposed auditing and
internal controls for which the waiver has been requested would meet the operational integrity
requirements of the act and this article. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-202-1. License required, applications. (a) No person may operate or own an interest of 5%
or more in an interactive sports wagering platform provider in Kansas, unless that person holds:

(1) A gaming license specifically permitting the person to do so; and

(2) Applications for a license to operate an interactive sports wagering platform, must
be made processed and determined in the same manner as applications for a gaming license,
using such forms as the executive director may require; and

3) Each application for approval made by an interactive sports wagering platform
provider must be accompanied by an internal control system prepared and submitted to include
the organizational structure of the interactive sports wagering platform provider.

(b) No person shall provide goods, services, software, or any other components
necessary for the determination of the odds or the outcomes of any wager on a sporting event,
directly or indirectly, to a lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering
platform provider, including data feeds and odds services, unless such person holds a license
issued pursuant to this section.

(©) The interactive sports wagering platform provider must comply with any other
license requirements in K.A.R. 112-101-1 through K.A.R. 112-101-16 as deemed necessary by
the executive director.

(d)(1) Upon receipt of a complete application and payment of the required license fee,
the commission may issue a sports wagering supplier license to a person who satisfies the
requirements of this section and any rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto.
Applications for a sports wagering supplier license shall be submitted in such form and manner

as prescribed by the commission.



112-202-1

Page 2
(2) Such application shall include:
(A)  The identity of:
(1) Each person who directly owns at least a 10% ownership interest in the applicant;

(11) Each holding, intermediary or parent company that directly owns at least a 15%
ownership interest in the applicant; and

(i11))  the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the applicant or the
individual holding an equivalent office with respect to the applicant, as determined by the
commission; and

(B)  such other information as required by the commission.

3) The disclosure of any of the following direct or indirect shareholders of the
applicant shall be waived:

(A)  Any government-created entity, including, but not limited to, any statutorily
authorized pension investment board or crown corporation of Canada; and

(B) any investment funds or entities registered with the securities and exchange
commission, including any investment advisors or entities under the management of an entity
registered with the securities and exchange commission.

(e) Upon request by the applicant, the commission may issue a provisional sports
wagering supplier license if the applicant has submitted a complete application and paid the
required application fee. Such provisional license shall be for a term specified on the license but
not to exceed one year. The holder of the provisional license to the commission upon the

issuance of a sports wagering supplier license to such person.



112-202-1
Page 3

® The commission shall establish a fee for the issuance and renewal of a sports
wagering supplier license and provisional sports wagering supplier license. An applicant will be
responsible for all fees and costs incurred by the commission in performing the background
investigation of the applicant, its officers, directors and key gaming employees any persons
known to meet the requirements of (d), and any other person as the executive director deems
necessary, including any person specified in article 102 or 103.

(2) A sports wagering supplier license shall be valid for a period of two years from
the date issued.

(h) A sports wagering supplier license may be renewed by the licensee prior to the
expiration thereof upon application and payment of the required renewal fee. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-202-2. Provider suitability requirements. (a) A person shall not function as the provider of
an interactive sports wagering platform unless the person has been found suitable and has been
certified by the executive director.

(b) All interactive sports wagering platform provider licensee(s) shall be in adherence
to K.A.R. 112-101-6.

(©) Applications for suitability to function as the provider of an interactive sports
wagering platform shall be made, processed, and determined using such forms as the executive
director may require for approval. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-202-3. Licensing requirements for sports wagering employees. Any employee of a
lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform provider, who fulfills the
function of receiving and transmitting wagering instructions and any employee supervising this
function is a gaming employee and subject to the provisions of K.A.R. 112-103-1 through
K.A.R. 112-103-16. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022,

ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-202-4. Risk management requirements. (a) An approved interactive sports wagering
platform provider engaging in risk management may provide direction, management,
consultation, and/or instruction to the lottery gaming facility manager concerning:

(1) The management of risks associated with sports wagering and other event
wagering;

(2) The determination of where lines, point spreads, odds, or other activity relating to
betting or wagering are initially set and the determination of whether to change such lines, point
spreads, odds, or other activity relating to betting or wagering;

3) Whether or not to accept or reject bets or wagers;

4) The use, transmittal, and accumulation of information and data for the purpose of
providing risk management; and

(%) Any other activity associated with wagering if approved by the executive director
prior to an interactive sports wagering platform provider commencing direction, management,
consultation, and/or instruction concerning the activity.

(b) An approved interactive sports wagering platform provider which intends to
provide risk management shall:

(1) Enter into a written agreement to provide risk management with any lottery
gaming facility manager of an approved interactive sports wagering platform that the interactive
sports wagering platform provider proposes to provide risk management. A copy of such
executed agreement with a lottery gaming facility manager shall be provided to the executive

director and Kansas lottery no later than the date on which the interactive sports wagering



112-202-4
Page 2

platform provider commences risk management for the interactive sports wagering platform of
the sports wagering event;

(2) Provide details to the executive director regarding any permissible jurisdiction
other than Kansas where the approved interactive sports wagering platform provider intends to
provide risk management no later than the date on which the approved interactive sports
wagering platform provider commences risk management in such permissible jurisdiction;

3) No later than the date on which the approved interactive sports wagering platform
provider commences risk management, submit the interactive sports wagering platform
provider’s systems of accounting and internal control utilized for risk management to the
executive director. Such systems must include provisions for complying with all federal and state
laws and regulations; and

(4) Provide such other information as the executive director may require concerning
risk management.

(©) In addition to the requirements contained in subsection (b) of this section, at least
30 days prior to providing risk management to a Kansas licensee, an interactive sports wagering
platform provider shall submit to the executive director and the Kansas lottery the written
agreement for the risk management to a Kansas licensee. The executive director or the Kansas
lottery may object. If the executive director or the Kansas lottery objects to an agreement, the
interactive sports wagering platform provider shall not provide risk management to the Kansas
licensee until the interactive sports wagering platform provider has resubmitted the agreement to
the executive director and the Kansas lottery, and the executive director and the Kansas lottery

has indicated the resubmitted agreement has been approved.



112-202-4
Page 3

(d) In the event a patron has a pending wager and then self-excludes, the wager shall
settle, and the funds shall be remitted to the problem gambling grant fund established under
K.S.A. 79-4805, and amendments thereto, if the wager settles as a win or push.

(e) Each lottery gaming facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider’s internal controls shall contain details on its risk management framework, including
but not limited to:

(1) Automated and manual risk management procedures;

(2) Employee management, including access controls and segregation of duties;

3) Information regarding identifying and reporting fraud and suspicious conduct;

(4) Controls ensuring regulatory compliance;

(%) Description of Anti-Money Laundering (AML) compliance standards including
procedures for detecting structuring to avoid reporting requirements;

(6) Description of all software applications that comprise the interactive sports
wagering platform;

(7) Description of all types of wagers available to be offered by the interactive sports
wagering platform;

(8) Description of the method to prevent past-post wagers from being placed;

9) Description of all integrated third-party service providers; and

(10)  Any other information required by the executive director. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-202-5. Sports wagering registration requirement. (a) An individual or entity that is
contracted to provide goods or services that the executive director determines affects the conduct
of sports wagering but falls outside of the scope of an interactive sports wagering platform
certification or a vendor’s certification shall be required to register with the commission as a
sports wagering registrant.

(b) Affiliates that provide marketing or other services meant to promote sports
wagering websites shall register with the commission under this section.

(©) A lottery gaming facility manager shall conduct due diligence in a commercially
reasonable manner of each contracted sports wagering registrant. The due diligence check is for
high-level company officers and employees with decision making ability that directly affects
sports wagering related operations. The due diligence check shall include:

(1) criminal history;

(2) character; and

3) reputation.

(d) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall have each contracted sports wagering registrant complete a sports wagering
registrant form and provide these to the commission.

(e) All information deemed necessary shall be provided to the commission upon
request. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91;

effective T- )




112-203-1. Communications technology. (a) Before installing or permitting the installation of
communications technology on the premises of a sports book, the lottery gaming facility
manager shall notify the executive director in writing of the location and number or other
identifier of each communications technology and shall obtain the written approval of the
executive director for each communications technology. The executive director may condition
the approval in any manner the executive director considers appropriate.

(b) Before the interactive sports wagering platform accepts any wagering
communications, and before the interactive sports wagering platform accepts any wagering
instructions, the lottery gaming facility manager shall obtain written approval from the executive
director to accept such wagering communications and wagering instructions, and thereafter use
only the communications technology approved for that purpose.

(©) As a condition to the granting of the privilege of having communications
technology upon the licensed premises, the lottery gaming facility manager shall be deemed to
have consented to the authority of the executive director to require the immediate removal of any
communications technology from the licensed premises at any time without prior notice.

(d) Upon the request of the executive director, the lottery gaming facility manager
shall provide a written consent for the executive director to examine and copy the records of any
communications company or utility that pertains to the operation of the interactive sports
wagering platform. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022,

ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-203-2. Change management requirements. (a) The Change Management program shall
ensure that all changes to the interactive sports wagering platform are conducted by an
established set of processes, submitted to, and approved by the executive director, and shall leave
a complete audit trail. These processes must be:
(1) Developed in accordance with the most current version of Gaming Laboratories
International’s GLI-CMP Change Management Program Guide; and
(2) Approved prior to its deployment and is subject to an audit at an annual interval
by the executive director or its designee which may be a Kansas Racing &
Gaming Commission-approved independent testing laboratory.
(b) The Change management program shall ensure transparency in relation to
changes in the interactive sports wagering platform and the system process behind those changes.
(©) The Change management system framework shall consist of the following:
(1) Framework for managing system changes;
(2) Definition of responsibilities, to include:
(A)  License Holder Responsibilities; and
(B)  Responsibility of Change Management System SME (Subject Matter
Expert)/Manager;
(1) Role — the interactive sports wagering platform shall appoint one or more among
their staff to take overall responsibility of system changes.
(11) Skill — The responsible manager(s) shall possess sufficient experience and
competence in relation to change management and hold a key position within the interactive

sports wagering platform in relation to change management.



112-203-2
Page 2

(ii1))  Log — The responsible manager(s) need not necessarily handle the system changes
personally. The interactive sports wagering platform shall keep a log of the persons who have
been involved in the decision process.

3) Prior to approval of system changes by the executive director, the responsible
managers shall confirm that the proposed system changes are;

(A)  Consistent;

(B)  Necessary;

(C)  Have acceptable consequences; and

(D)  Carefully considered, documented, and categorized.

(4) Program change control procedures shall be adequate to ensure that only
authorized versions of programs are implemented on the production environment. These change
controls shall include;

(A)  An appropriate software version control or mechanism for all software
components and source code;

(B)  Records kept of all new installations and/or modifications to the system,
including:

(1) The date of the installation or modification;

(11) Details of the reason or nature of the installation or change such as new software,
server repair, significant configuration modifications;

(ii1)) A description of procedures required to bring the new or modified component into
service (conversion or input of data, installation procedures, etc);

(iv)  The identity of the user(s) performing the installation or modification;



112-203-2
Page 3

(v) A strategy for reverting back to the previous implementation if install is
unsuccessful, including complete backups of previous versions of software and a test of the
rollback plan prior to the implementation to the production environment;

(vi) A policy addressing emergency change procedures;

(vil)  Procedures for testing and migration of changes;

(viii) Segregation of duties between the developers, quality assurance team, migration
team and users; and

(ix)  Procedures to ensure technical and user documentation is updated as a result of a
change.

(d) Remote access into the interactive sports wagering platform shall meet the
requirements of KAR 112-107-31. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-203-3. Interactive sports wagering platform requirements. (a) All wagers shall be
initiated, received, and otherwise made within the State of Kansas unless otherwise permitted in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws. Consistent with the intent of the United States
Congress as articulated in the Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement Act of 2006 (31
U.S.C.§§ 5361 et seq.), the intermediate routing of electronic data relating to a lawful intrastate
wager authorized under this provision shall not determine the location or locations in which such
wager is initiated, received, or otherwise made.

(b) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall document and maintain any system malfunction or deviation from the interactive
sports wagering platform and maintain the data for a minimum period of two years.

(©) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall provide the executive director or the executive director’s designee with access to
wagering transactions and related data as deemed necessary in a manner approved by the
executive director.

(d) All interactive sports wagering platforms shall be designed to ensure the integrity
and confidentiality of all patron communications and ensure the proper identification of the
sender and receiver of all communications. If communications are performed across a public or
third-party network, the platform shall either encrypt the data packets or utilize a secure
communications protocol to ensure the integrity and the confidentiality of the transmission.

(e) The interactive sports wagering platform shall employ a mechanism capable of
maintaining a separate copy of all information required on a separate and independent logging

device capable of being administered by an employee with no incompatible function. If the



112-203-3
Page 2

interactive sports wagering platform can be configured such that any logged data is contained in
a secure transaction file, a separate logging device is not required.

® All interactive sports wagering platform data shall be required to be exported in a
format required by the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.

(2) All procedures used to meet the interactive sports wagering requirements shall be
submitted in the internal controls. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-203-4. Electronic asset disposal. Prior to disposal of an electronic asset any sensitive and
confidential data shall be sanitized from the equipment by performing a data wipe or over-write,
or physical destruction. Sanitization may occur by one of the following methods:

(a) overwriting the media;

(b) magnetic erasure of the media;

(©) physical destruction of the media; or

(d) other method approved by the commission. (Authorized by and implementing

K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-203-5. Server location and access. (a) A lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive
sports wagering platform provider must locate its primary server responsible for the acceptance
of sports wagers in the State of Kansas. The executive director may approve of the use of internet
or cloud-based hosting of duplicate data or data not related to transactional wagering data upon
written request of a lottery facility manager.

(1) The locations selected must have adequate security and twenty-four hour
surveillance.

(2) The location must be approved by the executive director of the Kansas Racing
and Gaming Commission prior to installation.

(b) The server shall provide a mechanism for the executive director to query and
export all sports wagering data. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended

by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- )




112-203-6. Geofence Requirement. (a) In order to prevent unauthorized use of the internet

or a mobile device to place a sports wager when a patron is not within the state of Kansas, the

lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall

utilize a geofence system to reasonably detect the physical location of a patron attempting to

access the interactive sports wagering platform and place a wager, and to monitor and block

unauthorized attempts to place a wager when a patron is not within the State of Kansas.

(b)

The geofence system shall ensure that any patron is located within the state of Kansas

when placing any wager, and shall be equipped to dynamically monitor the patron’s location and

block unauthorized attempts to place a wager throughout the duration of the patron’s session.

(©

Before being deployed in this state the geofence system shall be certified by a Kansas

Racing & Gaming Commission approved independent testing laboratory, including applicable field

testing and evaluation of the following geo-location techniques and methods:

(1)
2)
(A)
(B)
©)
3)
platform.

)

Basic methods that include IP addresses;

Advanced methods using trilateration (i.e. triangulation) through;
Cell towers;

Wi-Fi; and

GPS.

Methods utilized in order to prevent unauthorized use of interactive sports wagering

Geo-location techniques reasonably possessing the ability to detect the physical

location of a patron attempting to access the interactive sports wagering platform and to monitor and

block unauthorized attempts.



112-203-6
Page 2

(5) Any other requirements required by the executive director.

(d) The executive director shall approve technical specifications for geofence systems
and any specific requirements related to geolocation technology.

(e) Nothing in these regulations regarding sports wagering shall restrict any lottery
gaming facility manager, any interactive sports wagering platform provider, or any subcontracted
party related to sports wagering from having employees located outside of the State of Kansas so
that all job functions will conform with 18 U.S.C. Section 1081 et seq. (Authorized by and

implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- )




112-203-7. Certification testing. (a) Prior to offering sports wagering on behalf of the Kansas
lottery and on an annual basis, the interactive sports wagering platform and equipment used in
conjunction with the sports wagering shall be evaluated by a Kansas Racing & Gaming
Commission approved independent testing laboratory for certification testing.

(b) The Kansas Racing & Gaming Commission-approved independent testing
laboratory shall certify that the interactive sports wagering platform and equipment used in
conjunction with the sports wagering operation meets or exceeds the most current version of
Gaming Laboratories International’s GLI-33, Standards for Event Wagering Systems and its
appendices, or equivalent standard as approved by the commission, and the standards established
by this document. Lottery gaming facility managers are prohibited from offering on behalf of the
lottery, sports wagering in Kansas without such certification, whether directly or through any
interactive sports wagering platform provider.

(©) Interactive sports wagering platforms and equipment, shall be subject to the
following testing:

(1) Wagering account controls/authentication;

(2) Geolocation verification;

3) Base and peripheral web pages (artwork and functionality);

4) Wagering disclosure and operation;

(%) Settlement determination and display;

(6) Payment of winnings;

(7) All supporting wager types (straight, fixed odds, etc.);

(8) Cancellation, voiding, suspension or termination of bets or events;



)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)

8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-

Financial/operational accounting and reporting;
Wagering history;

Shutdown and recovery;

Desktop and mobile compatibility;

Technical standards-specific requirements;
Source code review;

Software and system version control; and

112-203-7
Page 2

Submitted documentation review. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-

)



112-203-8. Waiver of requirements. (a) One or more of the requirements of this article
applicable to technology and interactive sports wagering platform requirements may be waived
by the commission on its own initiative, upon the commission’s determination that the
compensating control or procedure, as documented in a lottery gaming facility manager’s or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider’s internal control system, meets the operational
integrity requirements of the act and this article.

(b) Any lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider may submit a written request to the commission for a waiver for one or more of the
requirements in this article. The request shall be filed on an amendment waiver and request form
and shall include supporting documentation demonstrating how the proposed auditing and
internal controls for which the waiver has been requested would meet the operational integrity
requirements of the act and this article. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-204-1. Sports book surveillance system requirements. (a) A lottery gaming facility
manager or applicant for an interactive sports wagering platform provider certification shall have
a surveillance system before beginning sports wagering operations. The surveillance system shall
include a digital video system capable of the following:

(1) Instant replay;

(2) Recording by any camera in the system; and

3) Allowing simultaneous and uninterrupted recording and playback.

(b) The surveillance system shall include a communication system capable of
monitoring the sports book, including the security department.

(©) The surveillance system shall be connected to all facility alarm systems.

(d) The surveillance system shall be capable of monitoring the entire property, except
private offices and restrooms.

(e) The surveillance system shall include the following features:

(1) Redundant system drives;

(2) A backup power supply capable of operating all surveillance equipment during a
power outage. The backup power supply shall be tested on a monthly basis;

3) Backup storage components that will automatically continue or resume recording
in the event of failure of any single component of the system, so that the failure of any single
component will not result in the loss of any data from the system; and

(4) Automatic restart if a power failure occurs.

® The digital video system shall meet the following requirements:

(1) Function as a closed network;



)
3)

112-204-1
Page 2

Have its access limited to the personnel identified in the surveillance system plan;

Be equipped to ensure that any transmissions are encrypted, have a firewall at

both ends, and are password-protected;

4

Be equipped with a failure notification system that provides an audible and visual

notification of any failure in the surveillance system or the digital video recording storage

system;
®)
(6)
(A)
(B)
(7)

Record all images and audit records on a hard drive;
Be locked by the manufacturer to do the following:
Disable the erase and reformat functions; and
Prevent access to the system data files; and

Be equipped with data encryption or watermarking so that surveillance personnel

will be capable of demonstrating in a court of law that the video was not altered or manipulated

in any way.

(2

The surveillance system shall include cameras dedicated to monitoring the

following with sufficient clarity to identify any person and their activities:

(1)
(A)
(B)
©)
(D)

All designated sports wagering areas including:

Where tickets are purchased or redeemed,

Where ticker monitors are displayed;

The viewing area(s) where patrons view sporting events;

Where point-of-sale and sports wagering kiosks are located; and



112-204-1
Page 3

(E)  All areas of the sports book inclusive of sports wagering and other gaming
activity.

(h) The surveillance system required by this regulation shall be equipped with light-
sensitive cameras with lenses of sufficient magnification to allow the operator to read
information on ticker and television monitors displaying sporting events. The surveillance
systems shall be capable of clandestine monitoring in detail from various vantage points during:

(1) The conduct and operation of the cashier cage, satellite cashier cages, sports
wager cashier, sports wagering windows, while all data is displayed on all tickets at each kiosk,
count rooms and vault(s), and;

(2) The movement of cash and any other gaming facility assets.

(1) All cameras shall be equipped with lenses of sufficient magnification capabilities
to allow the operator to clearly distinguish the value of the following:

(1) All data displayed on all ticker monitors, and;

2) All data displayed on television monitors showcasing sporting events in
designated areas for sports wagering activity.

() All surveillance system display screens shall meet all of the following
requirements:

(1) Be equipped with a date and time generator synchronized to a central clock that
meets the following requirements:

(A) Isdisplayed on any of the surveillance system display screens; and

(B)  Isrecorded on all video pictures or digital images;



112-204-1
Page 4

(2) Be capable of recording what is viewed by any camera in the system; and

3) Be of a sufficient number to allow the following:

(A)  Simultaneous recording and coverage as required by this article;

(B)  Off-line playback;

(C)  Duplication capabilities;

(D)  Single-channel monitors in the following areas:

(1) Each entry and each exit;

(i1) The main bank and cages;

(ii1))  Sports Wagering Kiosks; and

(iv)  Designated sports wagering area(s); and

(E)  No more than four channels per monitor in all other areas where surveillance is
required.

(k) The surveillance system shall be connected to at least one video printer. Each
video printer shall be capable of generating clear color copies of the images depicted on the
surveillance system display screen or video recording.

) All wiring within the surveillance system shall be tamper-resistant.

(m)  The surveillance system shall be linked to the commission’s security office with
equipment capable of monitoring or directing the view of any system camera.

(n) The commission’s director of security shall be notified at least 48 hours in
advance of the relocation of any camera on the surveillance system’s floor plan. (Authorized by

and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- )




112-204-2. Sports book surveillance system plan. (a) Each sports book’s surveillance plan

shall be submitted to the executive director prior to approval of a surveillance system.

(b)

A sports book shall not commence sports wagering activities until its surveillance

system plan is approved by the commission.

(©)
(1)
2)
€)
(4)
©)
and
(6)

system.

(d)

To be approved, the surveillance system plan shall include the following:
A schematic showing the placement of all surveillance equipment;

A detailed description of the surveillance system and its equipment;

The policies and procedures for the surveillance department;

The plans for staffing as required in K.A.R. 112-106-4;

The monitoring activities for both the sports wagering area and adjacent areas;

A list of the sports book’s personnel that may have access to the surveillance

All proposed changes to the surveillance system plan shall be submitted by the

director of surveillance to the commission for approval at least 30 days before the director of

surveillance desires to implement the changes. A new schematic will be submitted if placement

of equipment is altered. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L.

2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-204-3. Sports book surveillance department. (a) Each sports book shall have a
surveillance department that is responsible for the following:

(1) Detection of cheating, theft, embezzlement, and other illegal activities in the
sports book;

(2) Detection of the presence in the sports book of any person who is required to be
excluded pursuant to voluntary or involuntary exclusion;

3) Detection of persons under age 21 and any voluntarily excluded persons within
the sports book; and

4) Clandestine video recording of activities in the sports book.

(b) The surveillance department shall be independent of all aspects of sports book
operations.

(©) The director of surveillance shall ensure that procedures are created for
maintaining the chain of evidence custody of surveillance information that reasonably can be
expected to be used in a criminal or regulatory investigation.

(d) Upon request, each sports book shall provide the executive director and his/her
employees with access to its surveillance system and transmissions.

(e) Each member of the surveillance department shall comply with any request made
by a commission employee to perform the following:

(1) Use, as necessary, any surveillance room that monitors the sports book;

(2) Display on the monitors in the surveillance room any event capable of being

monitored by the surveillance system; and



112-204-3
Page 2

3) Make a video recording and, if applicable, audio recording of, and take a still
photograph of, any event capable of being monitored by the surveillance system.

® The director of surveillance shall notify commission security employees as soon
as possible but within 30 minutes of any incident of surveillance equipment failure.

(2) The director of surveillance shall ensure that a reasonable attempt to repair or
replace malfunctioning equipment is made within 24 hours. (Authorized by and implementing

K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-204-4. Sports book surveillance department staffing. (a) The surveillance department
shall be supervised by a director of surveillance. The director of surveillance shall report directly
to the lottery gaming facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform provider’s
board of directors or similar body. The director of surveillance shall not report to or take
direction from any authority at or below the level of the general manager.

(b) The personnel of the sports book’s surveillance department shall at all times be
employees or contracted employees of the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive
sports wagering platform provider. The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports
wagering platform provider shall not outsource the surveillance function to any third party.

(©) The surveillance department shall be reasonably staffed, as determined by the
executive director, considering the size, layout and optimal operating capacity of the sports book.

(d) No surveillance department employee shall transfer from the surveillance
department to another department of the sports book, unless at least one year has passed since the
surveillance department employee worked in surveillance. The lottery gaming facility manager
or its interactive sports wagering platform provider may request that the executive director waive
this requirement if the lottery gaming facility manager demonstrates that the surveillance and
security systems of the sports book will not be jeopardized or compromised by the employment
of the surveillance employee in the particular position requested.

(e) Each surveillance employee shall be trained in the following:

(1) Surveillance techniques;

(2) The operation of all surveillance equipment;

3) Regulatory requirements;



112-204-4
Page 2

(4) Internal control procedures;

(%) The rules of sports wagering;

(6) The methods of cheating, theft, embezzlement, and other illegal activities in a
gaming facility; and

(7) The surveillance department’s procedures on handling surveillance evidence.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-

)




112-204-5. Sports book surveillance room. (a) Each sports book shall have a secure
surveillance room of their own with reasonable space or be allowed to utilize the lottery gaming
facility manager’s surveillance room if approved by the executive director. The surveillance
room shall accommodate the required equipment and operator stations that are determined
appropriate by the executive director.

(b) Each surveillance room shall be located out of the view of the gaming area. The
entrances to the surveillance room shall be locked at all times and shall not be accessible to
members of the public or non-surveillance employees of the sports book.

(©) KRGC shall have unrestricted access to the surveillance room and all information
received or stored by the surveillance system.

(d) Access to the surveillance room shall be limited to surveillance employees of the
gaming facility, the Kansas Lottery employees, and KRGC employees, except those persons with
a legitimate need to enter the surveillance room may do so upon receiving approval from a
commission enforcement agent.

(1) Each person, other than surveillance personnel and commission enforcement
agents, entering the surveillance room shall sign a surveillance room entry log.

(2) The surveillance room entry log shall meet the following requirements:

(A)  Be maintained in the surveillance room by surveillance room personnel;

(B)  Be maintained in a book with bound numbered pages that cannot readily be
removed;

(C)  Be signed by each person entering the surveillance room, with each entry

containing the following:



112-204-5
Page 2

(1) The date and time of entering the surveillance room;

(11) The entering person's name and that person’s affiliation or department within the
gaming facility;

(ii1))  The reason for entering the surveillance room; and

(iv)  The date and time of exiting the surveillance room; and

(D)  Be retained for at least one year after the date of the last entry. The destruction of
the surveillance room entry log shall be approved by the commission’s director of security.

3) The surveillance room entry log shall be made available for inspection by the
KRGC employees upon demand.

(e) The surveillance room shall be subject to periodic inspection by commission
employees to ensure that all of the following conditions are met:

(1) All equipment is working properly.

(2) No camera views are blocked or distorted by improper lighting or obstructions.

3) All required surveillance capabilities are in place.

(4) All required logs are current and accurate.

(%) There is sufficient staff to protect the integrity of gaming at the facility.

(6) The surveillance room employees are not performing tasks beyond the
surveillance operation. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L.

2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-204-6. Sports book surveillance monitoring. (a) The surveillance department employees
shall continuously monitor the transmissions (record upon the executive director’s request) from
the cameras used to observe the following locations, persons, activities, and transactions:

(1) All designated sports wagering areas including;

(A)  Where tickets are purchased or redeemed;

(B)  Where ticker monitors are displayed;

(C)  The viewing area(s) where patrons view sporting events;

(D)  Where point-of-sale and sports wagering kiosks are located; and

(E)  All areas of the sports book inclusive of sports wagering and other gaming
activity.

(2) Each transaction conducted at a cashiering location, whether or not that cashiering
location services patrons;

3) The main bank, vault, and satellite cages;

4) The collection of cash storage boxes from sports wagering kiosks;

(%) Any armored car collection or delivery;

(6) Automated bill breaker, sports wagering voucher redemption, machines whenever
the machines are opened for replenishment or other servicing; and

(7) Any other areas specified in writing by the commission.

(b) The surveillance department employees shall maintain a surveillance log of all
surveillance activities in the surveillance room. The log shall be maintained in a book with

bound, numbered pages that cannot be readily removed or in an electronic format with an audit



112-204-6
Page 2

function that prevents modification of information after the information has been entered into the

system. The log shall contain the following, at a minimum:

(1)
)
)
(4)
©)
(6)
(©)

The date and time of each entry;

The identity of the employee making the entry;

a summary of the activity recorded;

The location of the activity;

The location of the recorded information; and

the surveillance department’s disposition of the activity.

The surveillance department employees shall record by camera and log the

following events when they are known to occur on the property:

(1)

Any activity by patrons and employees, alone or in concert, that could constitute

cheating or stealing;

)
)
(4)
©)
(6)
(7)
(8)
)
(10)

Any activity that could otherwise be criminal;

Any procedural violation by an employee;

The detention of persons;

The treatment of disorderly individuals;

Emergency activities capable of being observed by the surveillance system;
The presence of persons on the involuntary exclusion list;

The presence of persons on the self-exclusion list;

Arrests and evictions;

The treatment of ill or injured patrons;



112-204-6
Page 3

(11)  The on-site maintenance and repair of any gaming or money handling equipment;
and

(12)  Any winning amount that would trigger a tax event.

(d) Surveillance department employees shall record by camera the movement of the
following on the gaming facility floor:

(1) Cash;

(2) Cash equivalents;

(e) The surveillance department employees shall continuously monitor and record by
camera the following:

(1) Soft count procedures;

(2) Hard count procedures;

3) Currency collection; and

(4) The removal of the daily bank deposit from the sports book by armored car
officers. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91;

effective T- )




112-204-7. Sports book retention of surveillance recordings. (a) All recordings depicting the
detention or questioning of an individual suspected of procedural errors, regulatory violations, or
criminal activity shall be copied and provided to law enforcement agents upon request. Each
recording shall be retained by the lottery gaming facility manager for at least 60 days.

(b) Each recording not specified in subsection (a) shall be retained for at least 30
days. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91;

effective T- )




112-204-8. Sports book surveillance exceptions. If the sports book is not located within the (4)
four designated Kansas state-owned casinos, only K.A.R. 112-204-2 and K.A.R. 112-204-3

would apply. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91;

effective T- )




112-204-9. Waiver of requirements. (a) One or more of the requirements of this article
applicable to surveillance may be waived by the commission on its own initiative, upon the
commission’s determination that the compensating control or procedure, as documented in a
lottery gaming facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform provider’s internal
control system, meets the operational integrity requirements of the act and this article.

(b) Any lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform
provider may submit a written request to the commission for a waiver for one or more of the
requirements in this article. The request shall be filed on an amendment waiver and request form
and shall include supporting documentation demonstrating how the proposed auditing and
internal controls for which the waiver has been requested would meet the operational integrity
requirements of the act and this article. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-205-1. Compliance and audit requirements. (a) Each lottery gaming facility manager or
its interactive sports wagering platform provider must have documented revenue audit
procedures. Documentation must be maintained evidencing the performance of all revenue audit
procedures, any exceptions noted, and follow-up of all exceptions. The executive director will
approve the method of documentation and may require additions or modifications to revenue
audit procedures:

(b) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider, mobile management services provider, or management services provider must notify
the commission of any report that is filed, or required to be filed, with the securities and exchange
commission or other securities regulatory agency.

(©) Each lottery gaming facility manger or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider must file with the commission a copy of any suspicious activity report filed with the
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network related to the conduct of sports wagering in Kansas.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-

)




112-205-2. Revenue reporting. (a) Reports generated from the interactive sports wagering
platform shall be made available as determined by the commission. The interactive sports
wagering platform shall be capable of issuing reports by wagering day, wagering month, and
wagering year. Wagering data shall not be purged unless approved by the commission. The
interactive sports wagering platform shall provide for a mechanism to export the data for the
purposes of data analysis and auditing or verification. The interactive sports wagering platform
shall be able to provide, at a minimum, the following sports wagering information:

(1) The date and time each event started and ended;

2) Total amount of wagers collected;

3) Total amount of winnings paid to patrons;

4) Total amount of wagers canceled, voided, and expired,

(%) Commission or fees collected;

(6) Total value of promotional play or free play used to purchase or execute a sports
wager;

(7) Event status;

(8) Total amount held by the operator for the sports wagering accounts;

9) Total amount of wagers placed on future events; and

(10)  Total amount of winnings owed but unpaid by the lottery gaming facility manager
or interactive sports wagering platform provider on winning wagers.

(b) For accounting and revenue audit purposes each lottery gaming facility manager or
its interactive sports wagering platform provider must have procedures and systems for the

preparation, use, and maintenance of complete, accurate, and legible accounting and wagering



112-205-2
Page 2

records, which must include all transactions.

(©) All books, forms, records, documents, and data submitted to the commission must
have the name of the entity, date of completion, and the title of the book, form, record, document,
or stored data.

(d) General accounting records must be maintained on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles.

(e) Reports shall be provided in a format approved by the commission.

® The commission shall provide written notice to any licensee if additional reports
are determined necessary. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L.

2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-205-3. Annual integrity and security audit. If an interactive sports wagering platform
provider is conducting sports wagering for a lottery gaming facility manager, an audit of the sports
wagering operations for the interactive sports wagering platform provider or parent company of
the provider shall be conducted by certified public accountants authorized to practice in the state
of Kansas, and the audit shall be provided to the commission within 120 days of the provider’s
fiscal year and meet the following conditions:

(a) Inclusion of an internal control letter, audited balance sheet, and audited profit-and-
loss statement including a breakdown of expenditures and subsidiaries of sports wagering
activities.

(b) Inclusion of a supplement schedule indicating financial activities on a calendar-year
basis if the provider’s fiscal year does not correspond to the calendar year.

(©) Inclusion of a supplement schedule for all Kansas locations in which the provider
operates.

(d) Report of any material errors, irregularities that may be discovered during the audit,
or notice of any audit adjustments.

(e) Availability, upon request, of an engagement letter for the audit between the
provider or parent company of the provider and the auditing firm.

) The annual audit for sports wagering will meet the regulatory requirements of
112-104-6.

(2) Each lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider must contract with an independent third party to perform an IT audit. The third party

must be approved by the executive director as qualified, independent, and capable of performing



112-205-3
Page 2

the audit. The audits must be performed, and a copy of the report provided to the commission,

within ninety days of commencing initial operations and at least once each calendar year. The

audit and corresponding report must assess the following:

(1)

The design, controls, maintenance, and security of the interactive sports wagering

platform’s IT systems, including:

(A)
(1)
(ii)
(B)
(1)
(ii)
(B)
(1)
(i)
(iif)
(2)

Document review

Reviewing system architecture

Policies and procedures review

Onsite sudits

Physical and environmental security

Verification of procedures

Network security

Vulnerability assessment (internal and external)
Penetration testing (network and application layer)
Firewall rules review

The lottery gaming facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform

provider’s compliance with the IT and interactive sports wagering platform requirements of this

chapter; and
3)
(h)
(1)

(A)

Any other subject required by the executive director.
The required system validations shall consist for the following:
Laboratory document review.

Reviewing system architecture.



112-205-3

Page 3
(B)  Policies and procedures review.
(2) Onsite audits
(A)  Physical and environmental security.
(B)  Verification of procedures.
(1) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform

provider must file with the commission the report required by paragraph (j) of this rule in a
format determined by the executive director within one hundred twenty days following the end
of the fiscal year or upon receipt, whichever is earlier.

() At any time, the executive director may require a special audit of an lottery
gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider, by commission
personnel, an independent registered certified public accounting firm, or any other third party the
executive director approves as qualified, independent, and capable of performing the special
audit. The scope, procedures, and reporting requirements of any special audit are to be
established by the executive director. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




112-205-4. Sports promotional contests, tournaments, or promotional activities. Sports
promotional contests, tournaments, or promotional activities may be permitted by the lottery
gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider providing the
following:

(a) Rules shall be made available to participants for review prior to registering. Rules
shall include, at a minimum: all conditions registered patrons must meet to qualify to enter or
advance through the event, available prizes or awards, fees, and distribution of prizes or awards
based on specific outcomes.

(b) Rules are followed. Changes to rules shall not be made after participants have
registered.

(©) Results for promotional contests with an entry fee shall be made available for the
registered patrons to review at the same location at which or in the same manner in which patrons
registered. Results shall include, at a minimum: name of the event, date of the event, total number
of entries, amount of entry fees, total prize pool, and amount paid for each winning category.

(d) Fees collected less any prizes paid will be considered sports wagering revenue.

(e) Rules include terms and conditions. All emails or digital advertisements promoting
contests, tournaments, and promotional activities shall include a link or other easily obtainable
source that includes rules or terms and conditions.

63} There is compliance with all other federal, state, and local laws and rules outside of
the commission’s jurisdiction.

(2) Rules shall be submitted at least 30 days prior to the event and shall need approval

from the Kansas Lottery and the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission before the activity can



112-205-4
Page 2

take place.

(1) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider may obtain pre-approval of promotional, contest and tournament mechanics by
submitting to the Kansas Lottery and the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. Notification
must be provided at least 5 days prior to the event to the Kansas Lottery and the Kansas Racing
and Gaming Commission for promotions utilizing the pre-approved mechanics.

(2) The lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider shall maintain a digital log of all promotions, contests and tournaments. These shall be
made available to the Kansas Lottery and the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-

)




112-205-5. Internal Audit. (a) Each lottery gaming facility manager’s internal control system or
its interactive sports wagering platform provider shall include internal controls for internal audit
standards. The internal controls shall be submitted to and approved by the commission according
to K.A.R. 112-104-1. Lottery gaming facility managers or their interactive sports wagering
platform providers must maintain a separate internal audit department, located on-site, which is
independent of the sports wagering operation and may be the internal audit department of a parent
entity of the lottery gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform provider; to
semi-annually assess compliance with this article and approved internal controls.

(b) The internal audit department must audit the lottery gaming facility manager’s or
its interactive sports wagering platform provider’s compliance with rules and regulations adopted
by the commission, the internal controls as approved by the commission, the house rules, and
any other required procedures, as required by the executive director.

(©) The internal audit department must follow the standards, conventions, and rules
governing audits in the United States.

(d) The audit satisfying the requirements of this rule must be performed at least semi-
annually with the results documented in an audit report that must be provided to the commission.

(e) Documentation must be maintained to evidence all work performed as it relates to
the requirements of this rule, including all instances of noncompliance.

® All audit reports shall be prepared, maintained, and provided to the commission
on a schedule approved by the executive director.

(2) Follow-up observations and examinations shall be performed to verify that

corrective action has been taken regarding all instances of noncompliance cited by internal audit,



112-205-5
Page 2

the independent accountant, and the commission. The verification shall be performed within
three months of the issuance of the audit report.

(h) Whenever possible, internal audit observations shall be performed on an
unannounced basis.

(1) All exceptions disclosed during audits shall be investigated and resolved, with the
results being documented and retained for seven years.

() The executive director may require internal audits to be conduct more frequently
and may designate specific internal audits.

(k) All internal audit findings shall be reported to management, who shall be required
to respond to internal audit findings stating corrective measures to be taken to avoid recurrence
of the audit exception. The management responses shall be included in the internal audit reports
that are delivered to the lottery gaming facility manager’s management, the commission, audit
committee of the board of directors, or other entity designated by the executive director.

(Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T-

)




112-205-6. External audits and other reports. (a) Each lottery gaming facility manager or its
interactive sports wagering platform provider, must have its annual financial statements audited
by an independent registered certified public accounting firm approved by the executive director
and licensed to practice in Kansas. The audit must be in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards and, when applicable, the standards of the accountancy board. The lottery
gaming facility manager or interactive sports wagering platform provider must report to the
commission the name of the independent registered certified public accounting firm as well as
the lead audit partner or other individual taking primary responsibility for the financial statement
audit engagement before the start of the engagement.

(b) The lead audit partner or other individual taking primary responsibility for the
financial statement audit engagement may serve a maximum of five years in such a position before
being required to rotate off the engagement.

(©) The annual financial statements audit must be prepared on a comparative basis for
the current and prior fiscal years and present financial position and results of operations in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

(d) The audit required by paragraph (a) of this rule must be filed with the commission,
in a format determined by the executive director, within one hundred twenty days following the end
of the fiscal year.

(e) All audits and reports required by this rule are to be prepared at the sole expense of
the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform provider.

® The commission may require the termination of any audit engagement under this

rule due to lack of qualification, independence, or capacity or a finding that the contract or conduct



112-205-6
Page 2

performed thereunder poses a material risk to the integrity of sports wagering in Kansas. If an
audit engagement contract is terminated, the lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive
sports wagering platform provider, must enter into a new audit engagement contract to ensure the
requirements of this rule are met. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as amended

by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- )




112-205-7. Waiver of requirements. (a) One or more of the requirements of this article
applicable to auditing and accounting may be waived by the commission on its own initiative,
upon the commission’s determination that the compensating control or procedure, as documented
in a lottery gaming facility manager’s or its interactive sports wagering platform provider’s
internal control system, meets the operational integrity requirements of the act and this article.
(b) Any lottery gaming facility manager or its interactive sports wagering platform
provider may submit a written request to the commission for a waiver for one or more of the
requirements in this article. The request shall be filed on an amendment waiver and request form
and shall include supporting documentation demonstrating how the proposed auditing and
internal controls for which the waiver has been requested would meet the operational integrity
requirements of the act and this article. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 74-8772, as

amended by L. 2022, ch. 91; effective T- J)




	D.1.a GLI - Recommended for Approval - August 12, 2022 - KRGC Meeting
	D.1.b GLI - Recommended for Revocation - August 12, 2022 - KRGC Meeting
	D.2.a Agenda item Commission meeting IC 08_12_2022 Boot Hill
	D.2.a BMM - Recommended for Approval - August 12, 2022 - KRGC Meeting
	D.2.b Agenda item Commission meeting IC 08_12_2022 Kansas Star
	E.1.a BH KRGC REPORT 072022
	E.1.b BH - July 2022 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.2.a KSTR KRGC Monthly Meeting 8- 2022
	E.2.b KS - July 2022 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.a HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 081222
	E.3.b HW - July 2022 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.4.a KCC KANSAS CROSSING CASINO August 12th 2022 KRGC meeting
	E.4.b KC - July 2022 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.5 Aggregated Casino Financials - July 2022 Revenue
	J.1.a VEP Data Chart-Ending July 2022
	J.1.b VEP Data Map- July 2022
	Y. 8.12 calendar
	Z. Sports Wagering Regulations 7.22.22.pdf
	Draft - KAR 112-201-1
	Draft - KAR 112-201-2
	Draft - KAR 112-201-3
	Draft - KAR 112-201-4
	Draft - KAR 112-201-5
	Draft - KAR 112-201-6
	Draft - KAR 112-201-7
	Draft - KAR 112-201-8
	Draft - KAR 112-201-9
	Draft - KAR 112-201-10
	Draft - KAR 112-201-11
	Draft - KAR 112-201-12
	Draft - KAR 112-201-13
	Draft - KAR 112-201-14
	Draft - KAR 112-201-15
	Draft - KAR 112-201-16
	Draft - KAR 112-201-17
	Draft - KAR 112-201-18
	Draft - KAR 112-201-19
	Draft - KAR 112-201-20
	Draft - KAR 112-201-21
	Draft - KAR 112-201-22
	Draft - KAR 112-201-23
	Draft - KAR 112-201-24
	Draft - KAR 112-202-1
	Draft - KAR 112-202-2
	Draft - KAR 112-202-3
	Draft - KAR 112-202-4
	Draft - KAR 112-202-5
	Draft - KAR 112-203-1
	Draft - KAR 112-203-2
	Draft - KAR 112-203-3
	Draft - KAR 112-203-4
	Draft - KAR 112-203-5
	Draft - KAR 112-203-6
	Draft - KAR 112-203-7
	Draft - KAR 112-203-8
	Draft - KAR 112-204-1
	Draft - KAR 112-204-2
	Draft - KAR 112-204-3
	Draft - KAR 112-204-4
	Draft - KAR 112-204-5
	Draft - KAR 112-204-6
	Draft - KAR 112-204-7
	Draft - KAR 112-204-8
	Draft - KAR 112-204-9
	Draft - KAR 112-205-1
	Draft - KAR 112-205-2
	Draft - KAR 112-205-3
	Draft - KAR 112-205-4
	Draft - KAR 112-205-5
	Draft - KAR 112-205-6
	Draft - KAR 112-205-7




